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June 30, 2007 
 
The Honourable Caroline Di Cocco 
6th Floor, Whitney Block 
99 Wellesley Street West 
Toronto, Ontario M7A 1W3 
 
Dear Minister: 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Ontario Trillium Foundation, I am pleased 
to submit a copy of our Annual Report for the fiscal year 2006-2007. 
 
In this report, you will find a brief summary that highlights some of the goals 
achieved and the challenges met by our volunteers and staff. Also included is a list 
of grants made and our audited financial statements. In recognition of our 25th 
anniversary year, we have compiled a short retrospective section that features some 
of the more memorable grants made by the Foundation over the last quarter-
century.  
 
The Foundation acts as a catalyst that enables Ontarians to work together to 
enhance the quality of lives in their communities. This year, we are especially 
delighted at the prospect of being able to do even more to support the work of 
Ontario’s volunteers in their communities, thanks to the 20-per-cent increase in 
funding that the government has granted the Foundation over the next three years. 
 
Our volunteer Board of Directors and Grant Review Teams, supported by a 
committed and competent professional staff, continue to provide outstanding 
leadership. We share a collective pride in the Foundation’s continuing 
accomplishments, as described in this report. 
 
We value the effective working relationship the Ontario Trillium Foundation has with 
your ministry, and we look forward to continuing to work together to build healthy 
and vibrant communities through Ontario. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Helen Burstyn 
Chair of the Board 

45 Charles Street East, Fifth Floor, Toronto, Ontario, M4Y 1S2 Canada 
Telephone: 416.963.4927  Fax: 416.963.8781  TTY:  416.963.7905   Toll-free: 1.800.263.2887 
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Message from the Chair 

Helen Burstyn 
 

When the Government of Ontario created the Ontario Trillium 
Foundation in 1982, few would have predicted it would grow into 
one of Canada’s leading granting agencies in 25 years. 
 
What began as a modest granting organization now distributes seven times the funding it did 
when first founded. At the time of OTF’s first deadline for applications in April 1983, a mere 16 
grant requests had been received; today, the Foundation receives more than 3,000 applications 
annually. Only 21 social service organizations received funds that first year; today, the number 
of grant recipients numbers approximately 1,500.  Even more impressive, those many charities 
and not-for-profit organizations that benefit from OTF support are in turn supported by 
thousands of volunteers donating millions of hours of their time to programs and causes that 
matter to their communities.   
 
Of course, numbers alone cannot fully capture the impact of OTF in building healthy and vibrant 
communities. Over the course of 25 years, we’ve also seen plenty of practical evidence that our 
support is making communities stronger.  We see it in the new playgrounds in neighbourhood 
parks, the skills and confidence that acquiring employment skills are giving new Canadians, the 
community clean-up projects that are revitalizing our streets, and the creative projects in art, 
theatre and music that are enlivening our cultural sector.  
 
The surest measure of our success as a grantmaker is the success of our grantees and their 
communities.  Supporting them well is a matter of understanding the challenges they face, how 
they are changing, and what we can do to address their needs. In the fall of 2006, our Focused 
Conversations project took staff and volunteers out to a sampling of Ontario’s neighbourhoods 
to talk with local leaders and learn from them first-hand about their communities. We met with 
representatives of all the sectors we fund and all the communities that make up the many faces 
and places of Ontario.  We had sessions in Aylmer, Gananoque, Mississauga, Oshawa, Sarnia, 
Ottawa (one in English and one in French), Peterborough and Sudbury.  
 
Each Focused Conversation began with a discussion about the host community’s strengths and 
needs. What we learned prompted us to re-examine our policies and revisit our practices in the 
interest of being more accessible, responsive and effective in serving grant applicants.  
 
Our applicants told us that being able to interact with us personally – to get feedback on ideas 
or ask questions about preparing funding applications – was a key to submitting a successful 
application. Many wanted more information about how OTF makes granting decisions, why 
applications get declined, and how our volunteer Grant Review Teams operate.  We saw an 
opportunity and a need for sharpening our communications with communities and designed new 
information channels, including a new Web page to help our grantees and potential grantees 
connect more readily with OTF. This year, more than 5,300 people visited our online Application 
Writing Guide page, suggesting a greater interest in both filing applications for funding, and in 
making those applications more successful. 
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In 2006-2007, the Foundation made 1,430 grants to charitable and not-for-profit organizations in 
key sectors across the province: 
 

 Human and social services projects were given a full $42 million to help improve the lives of 
Ontarians. 

 Almost $23 million went to sports and recreation programs that promote healthy living and 
physical activity.   

 Arts and cultural initiatives received over $22 million in support. 
 The environmental sector benefited from over $8 million in grants. 

 
We continue to place priority on supporting organizations that help Ontarians become more 
successful students and learners; live healthier and more physically active lives; achieve 
enhanced employment and economic potential; and be more effective volunteers, engaging 
more people in their communities.  As of March 31, 2007, the Foundation had 3,258 active 
grants under active management – all contributing to the achievement of these key priorities.    
 
This year, our Board demonstrated its commitment to continuous improvement by focusing on 
strategic opportunities to improve the governance of the Foundation and the effectiveness of its 
grantmaking.  Believing that our Board should steer the boat and not row it, we introduced a 
number of changes to what we do and how we do it.  We have been working with the 
government to ensure that our Grant Review Teams have the volunteers in place to review and 
recommend grants.  We continue to acquire and, more importantly, share our extensive 
knowledge of communities with other organizations to be responsive to demographic and other 
changes taking place in the province.  And we are focusing additional attention on particular 
communities – rural communities that are being de-populated, urban communities where young 
people lack opportunities and northern and remote communities where Aboriginal needs can be 
better met. 
 
I would like to express my personal thanks to Hugh O’Neil, OTF Vice-Chair, and all my 
colleagues on the Foundation’s Board of Directors and our volunteer Grant Review Team 
members. Their dedication and unshakable commitment to our success, and that of our 
communities, is truly inspiring.  I am proud to know and work with them.  
 
I am also grateful to the Ministry of Culture for supporting our vision and work, and especially to 
our Minister, the Honourable Caroline Di Cocco.  The government’s confidence in and support 
for our Foundation has always been strong, and was recently reaffirmed with a 20-per-cent 
increase in our funding to be phased in over three years.  This has been a resounding vote of 
confidence in the Foundation, and we are truly grateful for the opportunity this will give us to do 
more for our communities.  
 
For 25 years, we’ve helped Ontarians to dream bigger, reach higher and grow stronger.  We’ve 
seen 25 years’ worth of results in every community in every corner of the province.  Now here’s 
to the next 25!  
 

 
Helen Burstyn 
Chair of the Board
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Message from the 

Chief Executive Officer 
L. Robin Cardozo 

 
A 25th anniversary is a significant milestone for any organization. 
For the Ontario Trillium Foundation, it’s a testament to the vision 
and vitality of our grantee organizations, empowered by Ontario’s 
strong and dynamic voluntary sector. Our 25th anniversary is also 
a tribute to the Foundation’s hundreds of volunteers and staff 
members – the people who, for a quarter-century, have supplied 
the faith, creativity and energy that has underscored every 
successful grant, program and project. 
 
We’ve gained a significant amount of knowledge and experience over the past quarter-century. 
So this year, the Foundation made it a top priority to capture and capitalize on what we know by 
launching a significant knowledge-management initiative.  
 
To be truly effective, knowledge management must be a directional, guiding strategy for the 
entire organization. Everyone must be involved in harvesting knowledge, whether it’s the 
anecdotal, human wisdom that each of us has, or the formal records and historical information 
our work produces. The Foundation is launching this massive project with an internal knowledge 
audit. From there, we’ll produce a knowledge-sharing directory, a “Yellow Pages”-type guide 
that will help OTF people connect to share information and resources.  
 
A second knowledge-management initiative this year will be tied directly to our 25th anniversary 
and its celebration. As part of our Great Grant events this fall, we’ll be holding learning 
opportunities in each of our 16 catchment areas. This will expand our knowledge-management 
project out beyond our immediate, internal confines, involving some of our volunteers and 
community stakeholders as partners in this undertaking. 
 
As an organization, OTF is committed to knowledge-sharing, as well. With today’s technology 
and information-management systems, we can dispense knowledge extensively, sharing it with 
our grantees, stakeholders and volunteers, and with our government partners and other 
grantmaking organizations. With full involvement and open communication, the return on this 
investment promises to be substantial – many times greater than our own individual contribution. 
 
Information and knowledge are important assets that responsible organizations must work hard 
to cultivate and safeguard. Wanting to mitigate the impact that adversity, epidemic illness or 
other disasters could have on our operations led the Foundation to begin developing a 
pandemic plan this year. Every department is taking part, working to identify critical core 
services and strengthen our back-up plans.  
 
Continuous improvement is a serious commitment at OTF. One of the best ways we have found 
to become more effective and efficient is to ask for feedback. In this, our grantees are a vital 
source.  We’ve made a point of regularly inviting them to express their views about OTF and its 
operations. We listen to what they tell us, taking appropriate action when and wherever we can.  
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This year, responding to suggestions and information from a number of fronts, we made it 
easier to apply for small capital grants. The application procedure has been streamlined for 
those seeking a maximum of $15,000, making the grant-request process simpler and less time-
consuming for many community organizations.  
 
The Foundation also took a very specific and targeted approach to learning more about our 
grants and the impact they can have. Our Small Towns project was launched this year, using 
video to document discussions and interviews in Kapuskasing, Kenora, Port Colborne, 
Hawkesbury, Goderich and Haliburton. The goal was to capture local voices and record human 
stories, documenting the effect of OTF grants on organizations and people in these locations. 
 
Few topics received more media attention this year than the environment. It’s an undeniably 
compelling issue, which will continue to have a pervasive impact on all of our lives. Protecting 
and revitalizing our natural surroundings have been important initiatives for many of our 
grantees. So this year, the Foundation began studying the impact we have had in the sector 
since 2001. When the results are fully analyzed, we hope to identify even more opportunities for 
OTF grants to help community environmental projects over the next three to five years. 
 
A silver anniversary can be a time of reflection. It’s also a good opportunity to reaffirm plans for 
tomorrow. The future of the Foundation is bright, especially in light of the government’s recent 
announcement of a 20-per-cent funding increase to be phased in over three years. It’s a chance 
to do even more for Ontario’s communities, and we will take full advantage of it. 
 
In the days to come, we plan to continue building deeper and closer relationships with our 
grantees and volunteers, capitalizing on the tremendous pool of skills and resources that exists 
there. To this end our fall bi-annual conference for volunteers and staff will offer a learning 
venue for us to rekindle a common understanding of our vision, mission and values. We will also 
learn more about the business of grantmaking and how we can strengthen it as we prepare for 
the new challenges the future will surely bring. The Foundation will also continue to grow its 
knowledge base, expanding our use of technology and our commitment to continuous learning. 
 
Our 25th anniversary year promises to be a time of excitement and celebration. OTF will visit 
each of our 16 catchment areas this fall, connecting with volunteers and grantees in Ontario 
communities of every size and type. We look forward to the new opportunities and connections 
these events will surely generate.  
 
I want to send our thanks and expressed appreciation to OTF’s Board of Directors, led by its 
extraordinarily dedicated and tireless chair, Helen Burstyn, as well as the more-than 300 staunch 
and unswerving Grant Review Team volunteers. 
 
And finally, my personal thanks to the staff of OTF – a committed, hardworking and passionate 
group of professionals who continually go above and beyond the call of duty. 
 
As everyone associated with the Foundation looks forward to 2008, we can look back on an 
extraordinary year packed with new initiatives, new learning, and many new successes.  It’s 
certainly been a great way to end our first quarter-century.  
 
 
 
 
 
L. Robin Cardozo 
Chief Executive Officer 
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ACCOUNTABILITY, IMPACT AND ORGANIZATIONAL 
EFFECTIVENESS  

Ontario Trillium Foundation 
Review of 2006-2007 Achievements 

 
The Ontario Trillium Foundation Business Plan for the year covered two major performance 
goals, each with supporting objectives. The following summarizes the organization’s 
achievements relative to those goals and objectives.  
 
GOAL 1:  Make investments to build healthy and vibrant communities and 
strengthen the capacity of the voluntary sector.  
 
Objective 1: Make grants to achieve priorities  
 
Achievements:                          
 
• Allocated 100 per cent of the granting budget for the year, by granting program and by 

catchment area; 
• Achieved granting targets within sector allocation ranges by granting 23 per cent of funds in 

the arts and culture sector, 8 per cent in the environment sector, 45 per cent in the human 
and social services sector, and 24 per cent in the sports and recreation sector;  

• Achieved granting targets in three of the four granting priority areas: 16 per cent of funds 
went toward Enhanced Success for Students and Learners; 45 per cent to Healthier and 
More Physically Active Ontarians; and 30 per cent to More Effective Volunteers and More 
People Engaged in Their Communities. Granting for Enhanced Employment and Economic 
Potential for Workers and Their Families amounted to 9 per cent, just under the target range 
of 10 to 20 per cent. 

 
Objective 2: Enhance the impact of OTF grants 
 
Achievements:                      
 
• Began work on a significant qualitative study of six small communities to help assess the 

community-wide impact of OTF grants;  
• Commissioned an environment sector study to assess the results of the Foundation’s 

granting to the sector and to assist with strategic grantmaking by identifying opportunities to 
enhance the impact of OTF grants in this sector over the next three to five years; and 

• Continued work on developing outcome indicators in the Foundation’s priority areas for use 
in grant application assessment.    

 
Objective 3: Strengthen the Foundation’s role as a leader and convenor 
 
Achievements:                          
 
• To extend the learning from the previous year’s Community Conversations initiative, 

conducted nine in-depth Focused Conversations, whose results helped to influence the 
2007/08 Business Plan, as well as the Board’s strategic discussions; 
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• Commenced development of a draft knowledge management strategy to share learning and 
help voluntary sector organizations share information; 

• Convened meetings of grantees and funders throughout the year in communities across the 
province; and 

• Began planning for a series of 16 Great Grants events across the province, with each event 
to be preceded by learning opportunities for not-for-profit organizations in that community. 

 
Objective 4: Enhance the equity and accessibility of OTF funding 
 
Achievements:                         
 
• Implemented a simplified application process for small capital grants, which was well 

received by small community groups; 
• Building upon the Foundation’s research on First Nations, Métis and other Aboriginal 

communities, doubled granting to these communities over the previous year; and 
• Carried out targeted outreach to other under-serviced and under-privileged populations 

including Francophone, ethnocultural and racial minority and rural groups.  
 
 
GOAL 2:  Enhance governance and organizational effectiveness. 
 
Objective 1: Strengthen governance  
 
Achievements:       
 
• Began a series of Board discussions on strategic directions for the next three years, with 

facilitation and guidance from McKinsey & Company provided on a pro-bono basis; 
• Worked collaboratively with the government to increase the number of volunteers appointed 

to the Foundation’s regional Grant Review Teams;  
• Strengthened the Foundation’s orientation plan for new Board members: and 
• Carried out a business process review to ensure operations are effective and efficient. 
 
Objective 2: Strengthen operations 
 
Achievements:       
 
• Carried out two internal audit projects resulting in recommendations for enhancing efficiency 

and effectiveness which will be implemented in 2007/08, and planned for further internal 
audit exercises in this and future years; 

• Initiated a Pandemic Preparedness Plan which, once completed, will be shared with other 
organizations;  

• Maintained a high ranking as a cost-effective foundation;  
• Maintained and enhanced the Foundation’s pro-active communications strategy.  Specific 

achievements included the facilitation of more than 700 grantee-recognition events and 
more than $1 million value in earned media coverage; and 

• Received international recognition for our website for the second year in a row, garnering 
the Bronze Award from the Council on Foundations’ Wilmer Shields Rich Awards. 
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GRANTING ACTIVITIES 2006-2007 
 

GRANTS APPROVED - ALL PROGRAMS:   
   
Grants Program Amounts Approved No. of Grants

   
Community Grants $76,515,100 1,320
Province-Wide Grants $19,247,300 110
Total Grants Approved $95,762,400 1,430

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Grants and Province-Wide 
Grants By Priority 

From April, 2006 to March 31, 2007

Success for 
Learners

16%

Enhanced 
Economic 
Potential

9%

Volunteer 
Engagement

29%

Healthier 
Ontarians

46%

Other Community 
Priorities

less than 1%

Target Range : 
 
Success for Learners 10-20% 
Healthier Ontarians 30-40% 
Enhanced Economic Potential 10-20% 
Volunteer Engagement 30-40% 

Community Grants and Province-Wide 
Grants By Sector 

From April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007

Environment 
9%

Arts & Culture 
23%

Sports & 
Recreation 

24%
 Human & Social 

Services 
44%

Target Range : 
 
Arts & Culture 20-50% 
Environment   5-20% 
Human & Social Services 30-60% 
Sports & Recreation 20-50% 

Community Grants and Province-Wide 
Grants By Budget Fund

 From April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007

Capital
22%

Operating 
30%

Project 
48%

Target Range : 
 
Capital 20-40% 
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Our vision, mission and values 
 
 

Vision 
The Ontario Trillium Foundation is a catalyst that enables Ontarians to work together to 
enhance the quality of life in their communities. We believe that communities across Ontario are 
rich in talent, creativity and drive, and our grants stimulate communities to build on these assets. 
 
Mission 
Building healthy and vibrant communities throughout Ontario by strengthening the capacity of 
the voluntary sector through investments in community-based initiatives. 
 
Core values and operating principles 
The following core values and operating principles guide the Ontario Trillium Foundation and 
shape its organizational culture. Our volunteers and staff are dedicated to reflecting these 
values in their actions and relationships. 
 
Accountability and transparency 
We appreciate the trust placed in us by the Government of Ontario, and safeguard the public 
funds we receive through rigorous accountability controls. Our communications programs and 
operational processes ensure that our guidelines and grant decisions are accessible and 
transparent to the public. 
 
Excellence 
Because we believe passionately that our work enhances the quality of life for people across 
Ontario, we aim to achieve the highest professional standards of excellence. 
 
Volunteer and staff leadership 
Our leadership depends on skilled staff working in productive partnership with knowledgeable 
volunteers who understand the needs of local communities in their region. Our staff and 
volunteer human resources practices foster this creative synergy. 
 
Inclusiveness and innovation 
Our policies and programs acknowledge that the people of Ontario are diverse and dynamic and 
that community needs differ across the province. We support creative initiatives that respond to 
the real needs of Ontario's varied and evolving communities. 
 
Integrity and respect 
Our grant decision-making processes, business practices and communications strategies are 
governed by the principles of honesty, integrity and fairness. We treat all stakeholders 
respectfully, including volunteers, staff, grant applicants and members of the public. 
 
Efficiency and impact 
We are determined to ensure that public funds are well invested and that our grant-making and 
grant-monitoring processes are cost efficient. We consistently measure and evaluate results 
based on grant outcomes. 
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Our granting priorities 
 
 

The Foundation will support the building of healthy and vibrant communities through community-
based initiatives that strengthen the capacity of organizations in the arts and culture, 
environment, human and social services and sports and recreation sectors. 
 
In particular, the Foundation will place priority on supporting organizations that work in 
the following areas to help Ontarians achieve their potential. 
 
Enhanced success for students and learners 
A healthy and vibrant community depends on the skills and knowledge of its members. 
Whether knowledge and skills are developed in the early years when children start school or 
much later in life, it is key that people of all ages and abilities are ready to learn. This is why the 
Ontario Trillium Foundation will place priority on initiatives that: 
 
• Provide community-based learning opportunities and create conditions for achievement for 

people of all ages and abilities; and 
• Help prepare children and youth for success. 
 
This includes, but is not limited to, broadening learning experiences for children and youth; 
helping children and youth remain and achieve in school; preparing young children to learn; 
providing opportunities for children and youth to experience positive personal growth; and 
improving adult literacy through resources and activities. 

 
Healthier and more physically active Ontarians 
Encouraging Ontarians to lead healthier lifestyles, as well as improving other determinants of 
health, such as air and water quality, and providing opportunities for people to enhance their 
health and well-being will lead to healthier and more physically active Ontarians. To this end, 
the Ontario Trillium Foundation will place priority on initiatives that: 
 
• Promote physical activity for people of all ages and abilities; 
• Promote recreational activities for people of all ages and abilities; 
• Enhance and help protect human and ecosystem health; 
• Create conditions for people to reach their full health and well-being potential; and 
• Promote cultural and artistic activities for people of all ages and abilities. 
 
This includes, but is not limited to, promoting and increasing physical activity; increasing or 
sustaining recreational and leisure opportunities; helping communities take responsibility to 
protect the natural environment; supporting systems that sustain health and well-being; 
sustaining a healthy arts community; and celebrating and preserving heritage. 

 
Enhanced employment and economic potential for workers and their families 
The Ontario Trillium Foundation supports initiatives that are innovative and that stimulate 
economic growth. To this end, OTF will place priority on proposals that support organizations to 
build skills, create jobs and enhance economic potential for individuals and communities 
through initiatives that: 

 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 13 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

Our granting priorities (Continued) 
 
 
• Provide skill development or employment opportunities; 
• Sustain and promote a greener economy and community; 
• Strengthen the economic health of a community; and 
• Help further a community’s long-term vision and growth. 
 
This includes, but is not limited to, increasing opportunities for employment for those 
experiencing barriers including Aboriginal people, newcomers, people with disabilities and at 
risk youth; strengthening organizations and supporting initiatives that promote a sustainable 
environment; sustaining the economic viability of the community; and encouraging community 
planning processes. 

 
More effective volunteers and more people engaged in their communities 
 
Volunteers are the foundation of healthy and caring communities that are safe, clean, secure 
and vibrant. Providing people with opportunities to actively participate in activities or programs 
offered within their community also contributes to this. We support initiatives that: 
 
• Create conditions to increase community engagement of people of all ages, abilities and 

cultures; 
• Strengthen volunteerism among people of all ages, abilities and cultures; and 
• Strengthen the voluntary sector. 
 
This includes, but is not limited to, building community connections and awareness; promoting 
and increasing volunteerism, particularly among young people; enhancing the capacity of the 
volunteer sector and fostering strategic thinking and innovation; and building the capacity of 
charitable and not-for-profit organizations. 
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A Quarter Century of Grant-Making 
 
 

In 25 years of grantmaking, OTF has accumulated a lot of history and memories. Here is only a 
small sampling of some wonderful success stories that the Foundation has been proud to help 
create. 
 
 
Muskoka, Nipissing 
 
Amelia Rising Women’s Collective 
2000 $37,000 over one year 
 
Amelia Rising/Crisis Centre of North Bay Group Services for Male Survivors 
2003 $80,000 over two years 
 
This organization has demonstrated versatility and responsiveness in meeting the needs of the 
Nipissing community, and OTF has been there to help. Their work to empower and provide a 
voice for women, especially as it concerns eliminating violence against women and children, 
took a different turn in 2003. 
 
Responding to what counsellors knew to be a bona fide need in the community, the organization 
received funding from the Foundation to launch a series of counselling sessions for male 
survivors of sexual abuse. For many, it was the first time they found emotional support for what 
had happened to them. 
 
 
Province-Wide 
 
Canadian Guide Dogs for the Blind  
1987  $700,000 over four years  
 
In 1987, a four-year OTF grant to this organization meant 
many Ontarians would get the help they needed to see the 
way.  
 
“I am delighted to let you know…more Ontario residents 
have been trained with guide dogs,” said Jane Thornton, 
founder of Canadian Guide Dogs for the Blind and OTF 
grant recipient. 
“These graduates, who come from such places as Elliot 
Lake, Ashton and Wilno, have benefited by enhanced 
mobility and quality of life due to the generosity of the 
Ontario Trillium Foundation.” 
 
CGDB proudly – and appropriately – named one of the first dogs to be trained in the new 
program …Trillium.  
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Province-Wide 
 
Canadian Women’s Foundation (CWF) 
1996 $750,000 over five years 
2003  $500,000 over five years 
 
For over 15 years, this organization has been dedicated to improving the lives of girls and 
women, sponsoring over 650 programs all across the country. OTF joined a collaborative 
fund to support women moving from poverty to self sufficiency by funding community 
economic development practitioners in Ontario. Over the years more than 10 local Ontario 
groups have been supported through this collaborative fund, which has helped hundreds of 
women to either obtain employment or start their own business. For many women, this has 
meant getting off social assistance. Partners in this collaborative included The Atkinson 
Foundation, Bank of Montreal, the Kahanoff Foundation, Levis Strauss & Co. Nancy’s Very 
Own Foundation and the Canadian Women’s Foundation 
 
In 2003, the Ontario Trillium Foundation showed its support for a special CWF initiative with a 
Province-Wide grant that made us a partner in the Women in Economic Development 
Consortium. This group helped fund projects through local community economic development 
practitioners that have successfully helped hundreds of low-income women increase their 
economic self-sufficiency and move out of poverty. Consortium partners included OTF, the 
CIBC, the Metcalfe Foundation, an anonymous donor from Western Canada and the Canadian 
Women’s Foundation. 
 
 
Halton-Peel 
 
Country Heritage Experience Inc. (CHE) 
2000 $71,000 over one year 
2005 $96,000 over one year  
 
This OTF Great Grants Award winner shows that today’s modern communities have 
something very important in common with those from days gone-by: caring, committed 
people. With a grant from OTF and the hard work of area volunteers, this historical agricultural 
park in Milton reinvented itself to become an important resource and local tourist attraction for 
the community. 
 
The Foundation’s grant helped CHE transform a barn into a year-round event facility, generating 
revenue from meetings, trade shows, product launches, fundraisers, weddings and celebrations 
of all kinds.  
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Simcoe-York 
 
Georgina Arts Council 
2001 $150,000 over two years 
2004 $195,000 over four years 
 
 
With an initial grant from OTF, this organization was able to upgrade the historic Sutton Library, 
turning it into a focal point for the arts in the community. 
 
With its second, four-year grant from the Foundation, the council got help to operate the facility, 
and by doing so, captured the attention of a local benefactor. On his death, he donated his 
million-dollar art collection to them, including many important works by Canadian artists. The 
need to properly preserve these 200-plus paintings helped secure still more funding from other 
sources, and earned the gallery a coveted spot on the list of not-to-be-missed centres for 
Canadian art. 
 
 
Province-Wide 
 
Hope Air 
2000 $200,000 over three years 
2005 $347,700 over two years 
 
This two-time OTF grant-recipient and 2003 Great Grant Award-winner continues to soar.  
 
In 2000, a three-year grant helped support the development and expansion of the Private Pilots 
Program. This network of 400 volunteer pilots with private planes helps fly people from remote 
locations or on poorly-served transportation routes to places where they can get the medical 
care and treatment they need.  
 
In 2005, OTF was there again for Hope Air. Our funding helped to create HealthNet, an 
electronic management system that provides a public and central access point for patients, 
medical practitioners, volunteers, donors and pilots.  
 
 
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge 
 
The Peterborough Community Housing Development Corporation (PCHDC) 
2001 $60,000 over three years 
2004  $135,000 over two years  
 
In 2003, PCHDC was awarded the OTF Human and Social Services Great Grants Award for 
renovating abandoned houses and buildings to create affordable housing in the City of 
Peterborough and an emergency family shelter. OTF funding helped PCHDC to grow their 
organization so they could continue to address the increasing demand for low-cost housing in 
their community. 
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Province-Wide 
 
Kids Help Phone 
1991  $802,900 over three years 
 
In 1991, OTF helped to make a good thing better. Our grant to this young, three-year-old 
service helped it to ground and solidify its support program for kids in need. With help from OTF 
then, and again in 2000, it was able to expand its counselling services, provide more public 
awareness programs for schools, develop its database and increase volunteer services. 
 
Kids Help Phone is still going strong today, there for kids 24/7, to provide support whenever 
young people need it and for whatever reason. 
 
 
Northwestern 
 
Muskrat Dam First Nation 
1995  $60,000 over one year 
1997 $19,500 over one year 
1998 $7,500 over one year 
 
Helping to build healthy and vibrant communities of all kinds is OTF’s mission – whether in the 
streets of our major cities, or in the most remote parts of the province.  
 
In 1995, our grant to the Muskrat Dam First Nation was a community builder. Located over 
200 miles north of Sioux Lookout, this First Nations group of 300 wanted to deliver health care, 
education, justice and social services in a way that blended the best of traditional and modern 
approaches. It wanted to better address its own issues while preserving its culture, language 
and sense of identity.  OTF agreed, and supplied the funds to help them develop a strategy to 
facilitate this. In 1997, another grant was provided to implement the strategy. 
 
In 1998, an OTF Community Connections grant helped this First Nations community again, this 
time to establish a forum for seniors and disabled people. 
 
 
Niagara 
 
Niagara Peninsula Homes (NPH) 
1995  $162,000 over two years 
 
Creating opportunities where there once were none… With a grant from OTF in 1995, this 
Welland organization began to do exactly that. In the process, they were able to realize a dream. 
 
NPH’s first project was the Good Food Box job creation program. It built a local produce-
distribution system to link consumers with local growers, training over 50 people in customer 
relations, sales, marketing, and distribution techniques at the same time. Fresh local produce 
was made available to 700 families in Niagara and Hamilton by people who now had new, 
employment-ready skills.  
 
Today, NPH also operates the Best of Niagara gift baskets, selling locally produced gourmet 
foods to the high-end market and helping to subsidize the Good Food Box. 
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Province-Wide 
 
Ontario Community Support Association (OCSA) 
1994 $30,000 over one year 
1995 $3,084,500 over five years 
2001 $650,000 over three years 
2006 $21,000 over one year 
2007 $247,500 over one year 
 
OCSA has much in common with OTF.  Like us, their work depends on the contributions of 
thousands of volunteers, who in turn work with staff in hundreds of agencies to improve the 
quality of life for hundreds-of-thousands of Ontarians. 
 
Early OTF grants to OCSA helped the organization become established in the early 1990s. 
More recently, OTF has helped OCSA provide resources and tools to its member agencies, 
and increase awareness across the province of services and how to gain access to them. 
OCSA, with the help of the Foundation have enabled many more Ontarians to live longer in 
their homes, more happily and securely. The Capacity Builders program, created with an OTF 
grant, is an arm of OCSA and is dedicated to providing the not-for-profit sector with 
professional development opportunities in volunteer management and leadership 
development. 
 
 
Province-Wide 
 
Ontario Therapeutic Riding Association (OnTRA) 
1985  $352,400 over four years  
1992 $771,400 over five years 
 
Sustainability. It’s a cornerstone of OTF grantmaking.  
 
OnTRA, one of the Foundation’s first Province-Wide 
applicants in 1985, has been giving Ontarians with 
disabilities a horse of a chance for over 20 years now.  
 
With its original four-year grant, the organization hired a 
full-time instructor, which meant more volunteers – and 
horses – could be trained, and more people with 
disabilities could take advantage of this wonderful form 
of recreation. 
 
Another multi-year grant in 1992 enabled more expansion, providing more workshops, 
fundraising training, materials and equipment for OnTRA’s local members. Today, OnTRA is 
still going strong, offering para-equestrian experiences at 40 centres across Ontario.  
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Province-Wide 
 
Regent Park Community Health Centre Collaborative 
2000  $643,500 over five years  
 
This revolutionary program works with youth at risk, involving parents and other community 
members in persuading them to stay in school. But it needed a champion to help it get off the 
ground. OTF was there, with a Province-Wide grant that launched Pathways to Education.  
 
The program began in 2001 in Regent Park, one of the poorest, most ethnically diverse parts of 
Toronto. Today, a full 95 per cent of eligible Grade 9 to 12 students enrolls in the program, 
which has expanded to include over 835 youth in over 60 different high schools. The drop-out 
rate has plummeted, the graduation rate has soared, and the college and university enrolment 
of graduates has increased from 45 per cent to 80 per cent. 
 
 
Halton-Peel 
 
Peel Committee Against Women Abuse 
1998 $70,900 over three years  
1998 $3,200 over three years 
2000 $210,000 over three years  
 
This collaborative of 38 organizations came to OTF with a solution to the challenge of providing 
better services to women who were victims of assault.  What they needed was the financial help 
to get started.  
 
With a grant from the Foundation, they developed a service-integration model that helped all their 
member organizations become more effective and consistent. In 2000, another three-year grant 
from the Foundation helped them provide training workshops, outreach activities and networking 
opportunities for their members, so they in turn could help still more women in Peel Region. 
 
 
Essex, Kent, Lambton 
 
Sarnia Lambton Rebound – A Program For Youth Inc.  
1996 $9,900 over one year 
1997 $3,000 over three year 
2000 $24,600 over one year  
2001 $22,000 over one year 
2002 $224,500 over three year 
2006 $91,000 over two years 
 
The Sarnia-Lambton Rebound program is all about giving young people second chances. Founded 
in 1984, the program has received $375,000 in funding from the Ontario Trillium Foundation. 
Grants have helped to start up a life-skills program, create a website, launch a program-alternative 
to home-suspension from school for youth, implement community justice circles and provide 
intervention for young offenders. 
 
In 2004, Sarnia-Lambton Rebound received the annual Donner Canadian Foundation award in 
the counselling and crisis intervention category, and the very first Peter F. Drucker Award for 
Non-Profit Management for its consistent record of excellence and innovation in management 
and service delivery.  
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Hamilton 
 
St. Joseph Immigrant Women’s Centre 
2000 $80,000 over two years 
2002 $152,200 over three years 
2006 $136,000 over two years 
 
Ontario’s opportunities can be elusive for those who lack the training, support or language skills 
they need to fully participate. In 2002, a three-year grant to this organization brightened the 
picture for many immigrant women. Our funding helped this centre develop a labour-market 
orientation program, giving women who were new to Canada the training and job-placement 
assistance they needed.  
 
In 2003, St. Joseph Immigrant Women’s Centre was the OTF Great Grant Award winner for 
another of the centre’s projects. The Vocational Orientation for Foreign Trained Nurses Pilot 
Project assisted foreign-trained nurses in the Hamilton area by preparing them to write the 
Registered Nurses examination and arranging for job placements and job experience. The grant 
transformed the lives of foreign trained nurses and their families through the training program 
and ultimately led to the creation of CARE (Creating Access to Regulated Employment), a 
government funded initiative that now sustains the program. 
 
 
Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury 
 
West Bay First Nations Nanaabiimg Focus Project and Two Bears Cultural Survival 
Women’s Group 
1998 $20,000 over one year 
1999  $3,600 over one year 
 
In 1998, this First Nations group on Manitoulin Island used an OTF grant to help them take control 
of their educational, cultural, recreational, health, business and legal institutions. It was an 
empowering process, resulting in improved living conditions for the whole community.  Vandalism, 
suicide and alcohol-related incidents dramatically decreased, and young people began to return to 
West Bay, bringing with them skills and training to benefit their home community. 
 
In 1999, additional OTF funding helped this group set up Internet access and provided the 
means to create their own Web page. 
 
 
Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin, Province-Wide 
 
eyeGO to the Arts 
2001 $180,000 over three years 
2005 $290,000 over three years 
 
Grants from the Ontario Trillium Foundation have often been on the leading edge, helping to 
effect change, enlarge horizons or create new possibilities. Such was the case with a grant to 
this Kitchener-based organization in 2001. 
 
With financial help from OTF, this service came to life and established itself, giving young 
people the opportunity to attend a wide variety of professional arts performances and venues 
affordably and easily. In 2005, the Foundation grant helped eyeGO expand the service into 38 
new communities across Ontario. In 2003, eyeGO to the Arts was awarded the Arts and Culture 
Great Grants Award for its discount tickets program.
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Champlain 
 
Francoscénie 
2004  $30,000 over six months  
 
Arts, culture, history and geography… this celebration of Ontario’s French-speaking people has 
it all. With a grant from OTF and other partners, a small Eastern Ontario community took a 
monumental leap of faith. The result was an unprecedented success that’s been a source of 
pride and economic growth for the people in Prescott-Russell. 
 
The production they created, L’echo d’un people, tells the story of nearly a thousand people who 
influenced the future of Francophones all across Ontario. Hundreds of volunteers participate in 
staging this show, which, now in its fourth year, has already been seen by over 70,000 people.  In 
2005, Francoscénie was awarded the OTF Great Grants Award for Arts and Culture. 
 
 
Province-Wide 
 
Fédération des Aînés et retraités francophones de l’Ontario (FAFO) 
1991 $1,345,000 over five years 
2002  $135,000 over three years 
2006 $325,000 over three years 
 
This OTF grant recipient marks a milestone in our history as being one of the first francophone 
organizations to receive OTF funding back in 1991.   
 
At the time FAFO’s focus was on structuring programs for francophone seniors across Ontario 
and developing chapters. Today, this organization’s dynamic and effective regional structure 
provides broad representation for Francophone seniors who are kept up-to-date through a 
newsletter in both hard and soft copy. Additionally, FAFO’s recent focus on young retirees, 
through additional OTF funding has been able to market their programs across the province.  
The Young retirees are proving to be an invaluable asset to the francophone not-for-profit 
groups across Ontario. 
 
 
Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth 
 
2004 Provincial Envirothon c/o Bruce Peninsula Biosphere 
2004  $48,400 over one year  
 
For four days in May 2004, more than 200 students, teachers, resource professionals and 
volunteers from over 20 different communities came together to propose realistic green solutions. 
What they left behind were five legacy projects to enhance local forestry, wildlife and soil.  
 
For the first time in its history, the competition, founded by the Ontario Forestry Association, was 
held in a totally rural community. Participants, volunteers and local residents had the unique 
opportunity to understand environmental issues better and see first-hand how living things are 
interconnected. OTF’s grant was used to promote the competition, train over 250 local 
volunteers and help transport and house participants. In 2005, 2004 Provincial Envirothon was 
awarded the OTF Great Grants Award for the Environment. 
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Halton-Peel 
 
Community Environment Alliance of Peel Inc. 
Share-IT 
2004 $219,000 over three years 
 
Innovation, technology and environmentalism. This winner of the 2005 OTF Great Grants Award 
models the kind of forward-thinking and green-space conservation that the world is counting on 
to sustain us in this century of global warming. 
 
With its grant from OTF, Share-IT was able to recycle computers and other IT equipment for use 
by low-income families and individuals. In addition to recycling, the program reduces hazardous 
e-waste in landfill sites. Its success has raised interest across Ontario and abroad. 
 
 
Northwestern 
 
Lakehead Canoe Club 
2004 $75,000 over one year 
2007 $32,000 over one year 
 
Dragon boat racing is one of the fastest-growing water sports in the world today. With help from 
OTF, this Thunder Bay club was able to purchase the equipment they needed, while keeping 
costs down. The result has been a dramatic increase in participation from local youth and 
adults. Dragon boat races now attract thousands of regional paddlers, and tens-of-thousands 
more come out to watch the races and cheer them on.  
 
The Lakehead Canoe Club makes its dragon boats available to other communities in an effort to 
build a strong Northwestern Ontario competitive force at the national level. In 2005, Lakehead 
Canoe Club was awarded the OTF Great Grants Award for Sports and Recreation. 
 
 
Toronto 
 
Sketch 
2000 $165,000 over three years 
2004 $210,000 over three years 
 
With grant money from OTF, youth who are homeless or at risk for homelessness in Toronto are 
being given something many of them have never had: a chance. This creative and successful 
program integrates diverse arts programs with job and life-skills training for youth aged 16 to 29. 
The skills are often all that they need to find an active, meaningful role for themselves in their 
community. Participants in the program find the confidence, skills and support to leave the 
street, return to school or find employment.  
 
Funding from OTF helped cover Sketch’s staff salaries and program costs. Participants were 
able to express themselves through artwork as well as exhibit and sell their work. They also 
made connections to mentors, found apprenticeships in the arts industry and support for 
education or a career in the arts. In 2005, Sketch was awarded the OTF Great Grants Award of 
Distinction for enhancing one or more of the OTF’s granting priorities. 
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Province-Wide 
 
Lieutenant Governor's Aboriginal Literacy Summer Camps c/o Boy Scouts of Canada 
2006 $365,700 over one year 
 
For 25 years, OTF grants have been providing opportunity and access for those who, through 
no fault of their own, can sometimes be left behind. In 2006, with a grant from OTF and the 
tireless advocacy of Ontario’s Lieutenant Governor, the Hon. James K. Bartleman, Aboriginal 
children in five fly-in Northern communities were given a foothold to the future: the chance to 
read. 
 
The Foundation then helped the Lieutenant Governor go on to attract other sponsors, to help 
sustain the project. “I raised $6 million for the expanded camp program,” Mr. Bartleman said in his 
speech on April 11, 2007, congratulating OTF on its 25th anniversary. “Now we are running 36 
camps for five years, thanks to support from nine universities, four colleges, the teachers’ 
federations, [and others].”  
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Grants Summary 
 

 
Community Grants Amount Grants
   
Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury $3,081,400 78
Champlain $6,936,000 152
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge $6,065,200 110
Essex, Kent, Lambton $4,202,500 75
Grand River $1,704,500 51
Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth $2,195,500 64
Halton-Peel $8,370,600 85
Hamilton $3,012,400 40
Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming $1,582,300 49
Niagara $3,001,300 58
Northwestern $1,771,900 41
Quinte, Kingston, Rideau $3,538,800 97
Simcoe-York $7,645,900 97
Thames Valley $3,907,000 106
Toronto $14,797,400 147
Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin $4,393,800 65

Sub-Total $76,206,500 1315
Grants subsequently modified or rescinded $308,600 5

Total Community Grants $76,515,100 1,320

Total Province-Wide Grants $19,247,300 110

TOTAL ALL GRANTS $95,762,400 1,430
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Community Grants 
 

Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
155 Squadron Royal Canadian Air Cadets Civilian Sponsoring Committee $13,600 1 year 

Abitibi Projects Inc. $49,000 1 year 
Algoma Manitoulin Youth Business Camp c/o East Algoma Small Business 
Development Corp. $20,000 1 year 

Algoma Music Camp $34,100 1 year 

Assiginack Curling Club $25,000 6 months 

The Autumn Leaves Senior Citizens Club of Lee Valley $30,000 1 year 

Bike-ology c/o Spirited Hawks Attendance and Retention Inc. $20,000 1 year 

The Canadian Hearing Society, Sault Ste. Marie Regional Office $30,000 1 year 

Caruso Club of Sudbury and District $15,000 1 year 

Centre culturel La Ronde $10,000 1 year 

Centre Franco-Ontarien de Ressources en Alphabétisation $85,000 2 years 

Club de l'âge d'or de Smooth Rock Falls Golden Age Club $15,000 8 months 

Club des Retraités de la Rivière-des-français $15,500 1 year 

Community Living Timmins Intégration Communautaire $57,000 6 months 

Connaught & District Historical Society $15,000 1 year 

Copper Cliff Curling Club $67,000 6 months 

Corporation of the City of Elliot Lake $20,000 1 year 

The Corporation of the Town of Moosonee $45,000 1 year 

Corporation of the Town of Thessalon $15,000 5 months 

The Corporation of the Town of Thessalon $23,000 1 year 

The Corporation of the Township of Michipicoten $50,000 1 year 

Corporation of the Township of St. Joseph $71,800 2 years 

Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah $30,000 1 year 

District A-5 Lions Convention - April 2007 c/o Lions Club of Sudbury $5,000 1 year 

Falconbridge Curling Club $10,000 1 year 

Futures North les Avenirs du Nord $25,000 6 months 

Gogama Local Services Board $36,700 1 year 

Greater Sudbury Environmental Network Reseau environnemental du Grand Sudbury $150,000 2 years 

Greater Sudbury Lacrosse Association $46,600 1 year 

Iroquois Falls and District Chamber of Commerce $8,000 1 year 

Jewels of Harmony Chorus $13,100 1 year 

Kapuskasing Golden Age Centre de l'âge d'or $9,100 6 months 

Kinsmen Club of Kapuskasing $20,000 1 year 

Laird Township $20,000 1 year 
Mirarco and Clean Air Sudbury c/o Mining Innovation Rehabilitation and Applied 
Research Corporation $73,000 1 year 

Misswezahging Development Corporation $50,000 1 year 
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Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Moose River Non-Profit Broadcasting Association $74,600 1 year 

Mt. Dufour Ski Area Inc. $75,000 1 year 

New Beginnings for a Brighter Future c/o Seizure and Brain Injury Centre $4,500 4 months 

North Shore Search and Rescue $30,000 1 year 

Northern Lights Festival Boreal $75,000 2 years 

Northern Lights Therapeutic Riding Association $25,000 2 years 

Porquis Recreation Association $19,200 1 year 

Radio de l'Épinette Noire $45,000 1 year 

Rémi Ski Club $32,100 6 months 

The Royal Canadian Legion, Branch 374 $37,800 1 year 

Salon du livre de Hearst $24,500 1 year 

Salon du Livre du Grand Sudbury $74,500 1 year 

Sault Search and Rescue Inc. $48,800 1 year 

The Sault Squires Police Cadet Corps $15,000 1 year 

Sault Ste. Marie Gymnastic Club $40,000 1 year 

Sault Ste. Marie Innovation Centre $50,000 1 year 
Sault Ste. Marie Navy League Branch c/o Royal Canadian Sea Cadets - Navy 
League of Canada (Ontario Division) $30,000 1 year 

Sheguiandah First Nation $20,000 1 year 

Social Planning Council of Sudbury $120,000 2 years 

Street Smart Solutions c/o Canadian Mental Health Association Sault Ste. Marie Branch $109,500 2 years 

Sudbury Action Centre for Youth $75,000 3 years 
Sudbury and Espanola Area Eshkniigjig Naagaazijig (Youth Leadership) Project c/o 
Community Builders $99,900 2 years 

Sudbury Canoe Club $25,000 1 year 

Sudbury Dragon Boat Festival $25,000 1 year 

Sudbury Multicultural and Folk Arts Association $15,000 1 year 

Sudbury Rock & Lapidary Society $8,800 6 months 

Sudbury Rowing Club $24,000 1 year 

Sudbury Sprinters Speed Skating Club c/o The Ontario Speed Skating Association $17,000 6 months 

Sudbury Winter Tennis Club $31,000 2 years 

Le Théâtre du Nouvel-Ontario $75,000 3 years 

Thessalon Community Curling Club $74,000 1 year 

Timmins Chamber of Commerce $103,500 3 years 

Timmins Marlins Swim Club $30,000 1 year 

Timmins Porcupine Track and Field Club $12,000 1 year 

Trailsmen Rod and Gun Club $15,000 1 year 

La troupe de théâtre La gang à Popa $25,000 1 year 

United Chiefs and Councils of Manitoulin $25,000 1 year 
Urban Aboriginal/Child Welfare Coalition c/o Waabinong Head Start Family Resource 
Centre $44,000 1 year 
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Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Victorian Order of Nurses - Sudbury Branch c/o Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada 
Ontario Branch $56,000 1 year 

Wahnapitae Community Centre $50,000 1 year 

Wawatay Native Communications Society $53,200 1 year 

Weengushk Film Institute $25,000 1 year 
Total $3,081,400  

Total Grants 78  
 
 
 
 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 28 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

 

Champlain   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
100% Actifs $40,000 2 years 

2007 Freestyle Kayaking World Championship c/o CanoeKayak Canada $16,800 4 months 

5 Cyclone Squadron Air Cadets $15,000 10 months 

78th Fraser Highlanders, Fort Glengarry Garrison $40,000 1 year 

Action-Logement centre d'information région d'Ottawa-Carleton $25,000 1 year 

Active Ottawa Actif c/o National Capital Region YMCA-YWCA $177,900 3 years 

Air Force Association of Canada, Wing 424 $29,500 1 year 
Algonquins of Pikwàkanagàn First Nation & Pikwàkanagàn Elders Committee c/o 
Algonquins of Pikwàkanagàn $40,000 1 year 

Alternative Learning Styles and Outlooks $15,000 6 months 

Big Brothers Big Sisters Ottawa $60,000 2 years 
Buy Local in Renfrew County Project c/o Upper Ottawa Valley Chamber of 
Commerce $38,000 2 years 

Bytown Museum $40,900 1 year 
Cambodian Community Working Group c/o Somerset West Community Health 
Centre $50,000 2 years 

Canada Dance Festival Society $40,000 2 years 

Canadian Film Institute $10,000 1 year 

Canadian Organic Growers, Ottawa Chapter c/o Canadian Organic Growers $34,400 2 years 

Canadian Ski Museum $8,000 1 year 

Candlelighters Childhood Cancer Support Programs $25,000 3 years 

Canton d'Alfred et Plantagenet $35,000 1 year 

Capital City Chorus $39,000 1 year 

Capital Storytellers c/o Ottawa Storytellers $20,000 1 year 

Carleton Heights Curling Club $68,000 6 months 

Catholic Immigration Centre, Ottawa $38,000 1 year 

Causeway Work Centre $62,200 2 years 

Centre Charles-Émile Claude $25,000 6 months 

Centre d'apprentissage et de formation + de Cornwall $75,000 2 years 

Centre Marguerite de Prescott-Russell $25,000 6 months 

Centre Youville Centre Ottawa-Carleton $90,000 3 years 

Les Chansonniers de Gloucester $25,000  1 year 

Cisco Ottawa Bluesfest $50,000 2 years 

Citizen Advocacy of Ottawa $30,000 6 months 

Columbus House (Pembroke) $64,000 1 year 

Community Foundation of Ottawa $100,000 2 years 

Community Resource Centre (Killaloe) $61,200 2 years 

Compagnie Vox Théâtre $91,800 3 years 

Comptoir Familial Le Partage de Bourget $15,000 6 months 

Consort baroque d'Ottawa $17,000 1 year 

Coopérative 301 $140,000 2 years 

Cornwall District Minor Baseball $48,000 1 year 
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Champlain (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Cornwall Minor Football Association $52,500 6 months 

Cornwall Minor Lacrosse Association $19,100 1 year 
Cornwall Public Library Environment Science Speaker Series c/o St. Lawrence River 
Institute of Environmental Sciences $17,200 1 year 

Cornwall Sealions Swim Team c/o Cornwall Project 2000 Aquatic Fund $11,300 3 months 

Croatian Folklore Ensemble $15,000 1 year 

Cumberland Community Singers $21,000 3 years 

District Numéro 1 du Richelieu International a/s Richelieu International $20,000 1 year 
Doors Open Champlain, East Hawkesbury & Hawkesbury c/o Corporation of the 
Township of Champlain $11,000 6 months 

Eastern Ontario District Soccer Association $70,000 15 months 

Everybody Wins c/o People, Words & Change $52,900 2 years 

The First Six Years $7,600 1 year 

Glengarry Curling Club $44,000 1 year 

Goulbourn/Nepean Collections Management Project c/o Nepean Museum $22,000 1 year 

Great Canadian Theatre Company $50,000 2 years 

Groupe Convex Prescott-Russell $14,000 1 year 

Le Guichet pour francophones de la région Champlain a/s Montfort Renaissance $95,000  18 months 

Higginson Tower Committee $24,400 6 months 

Hopewell Eating Disorders Support Centre of Ottawa $94,700 3 years 

Hospice Renfrew $60,000 1 year 

Invitation: The Quilt of Belonging $15,000 1 year 

iSisters Technology Mentoring $146,000 3 years 

Jack Purcell Recreation Association $7,400 1 year 
Jeunesse en action de Prescott-Russell a/s Réseau de développement économique 
et d'employabilité de l'Ontario $60,000 2 years 

Jewish Youth Library $42,600  1 year 

John Howard Society of Ottawa $80,000  3 years 

Joint Transition Committee c/o Ottawa Chinese Community Services Centre $71,000  2 years 

Kanata Rhythmic Sportive Gymnastics Club $15,000  1 year 

Kenyon Agricultural Society $35,000  6 months 

Killaloe-Hagarty-Richards Heritage Society $29,000  6 months 

Lancaster & District Curling Club $17,200  9 months 

Learning Disabilities Association of Ottawa-Carleton $71,000  2 years 

Lions Club of Winchester $40,000  1 year 

March Tennis Club $60,000  6 months 

Martintown Mill Preservation Society $30,000  1 year 

Maxville Learning Readiness Centre $15,000  1 year 

Minwaashin Lodge/The Aboriginal Women's Support Centre $80,600  2 years 

Mouvement d'implication francophone d'Orléans $85,600  1 year 

Musée d'histoire naturelle de Prescott-Russell $64,700  2 years 
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Champlain (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Muséoparc Vanier $90,000  2 years 

National Capital Boys Competitive Gymnastic Academy $21,000  1 year 

National Capital Wrestling Club $35,000  1 year 

Neil Squire Society, Central Regional Office c/o Neil Squire Society of Canada $20,000 1 year 

Nepean Oldtimers Slo-Pitch Association $10,000 4 months 

Nepean Synchro Swim Club $34,200 1 year 

Omàmiwinini Pimàdjwowin $45,000 1 year 

Onake Corporation $100,000 2 years 

Orleans Young Players Theatrical School $18,000 1 year 

Osgoode Youth Association $79,000 3 years 

Ottawa Anti Bullying Coalition c/o Child & Youth Friendly Ottawa $96,000 2 years 

Ottawa Asian Heritage Month Society $40,000 1 year 

Ottawa Bicycle Motocross Association $35,000 1 year 

Ottawa Community Coalition for Literacy $30,000 6 months 

Ottawa District Minor Hockey Association $24,300 1 year 

Ottawa Folk Festival $80,000 2 years 

Ottawa Independent Living Resource Centre $100,000 2 years 

Ottawa International Children's Festival $60,000 2 years 

Ottawa Inuit Children's Centre $126,000 2 years 

Ottawa Jazz Festival $70,000 2 years 

Ottawa River Institute $43,000 2 years 

Ottawa River Runners $14,400 1 year 

Ottawa Riverkeeper $116,000 2 years 

Ottawa Rowing Club $15,000 6 months 

Ottawa School of Art $50,000 2 years 

Ottawa School of Speech and Drama $25,000 1 year 

Ottawa Social Purchasing Portal c/o Causeway Work Centre $118,100 2 years 

Ottawa Swim Club $16,200 1 year 

Ottawa-Carleton Ultimate Association $55,000 18 months 

Parents as Teachers c/o Children's Village of Ottawa-Carleton $81,000 2 years 

Pembroke Farmers' Market Association $39,300 2 years 

Pembroke Little Theatre $25,000 1 year 

Pembroke Rotary Club and City of Pembroke c/o City of Pembroke $37,800 6 months 

Petrie Island Outdoors Club $31,200 3 years 

Le Phénix - Service d'intégration sociale $56,600  3 years 

Phoenix Players $12,000 1 year 

Polish Paderewski Choir of Ottawa $7,000 6 months 

Regroupement des gens d'affaires de Bourget $25,000 6 months 

Renfrew and Area Senior's Home Support $70,400 2 years 
Renfrew County Child Poverty Action Network c/o Phoenix Centre for Children and 
Families $29,000 1 year 
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Champlain (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Rideau Canoe Club $13,800 1 year 

Rideau Roundtable $20,000 1 year 

Rockland Concert Band $16,000 1 year 

Royal Canadian Legion, Osgoode Branch 589 $30,000 1 year 

Russell and District Girls Hockey Association $38,200 2 years 

Sage Youth $81,700 2 years 
Scouts Canada, 1st Rockland Scouting Group c/o Boy Scouts of Canada National 
Council $15,000 1 year 

Seaway Valley Amateur Radio Club $24,500 1 year 

Sexual Assault Support Centre of Ottawa $10,000 3 months 

Shine Music Academy, Performance and Production of Ottawa $20,700 6 months 

Société de développement commercial et touristique de Hawkesbury $32,500 1 year 

SomArts+ a/s Centre culturel Le Chenail $46,000 6 months 

Sonshine Community Ministries $102,000 2 years 

Stittsville Minor Hockey Association $12,000 1 year 

Stittsville Minor Softball Association $15,100 2 months 

Stroke Survivors Association of Ottawa $50,000 1 year 

Township of Bonnechere Valley $50,000 1 year 

Township of Madawaska Valley $30,000 1 year 

Township of South Dundas $18,000 6 months 

Township of South Glengarry $18,000 1 year 

Tri-County Literacy Council $90,000 3 years 

Tropical Conservancy $143,700 3 years 

Tucker House Renewal Centre $102,000 3 years 

Tumblers Gymnastics Centre $26,100 6 months 

Tungasuvvingat Inuit $140,400 3 years 

Valley Heritage Radio $50,000 6 months 

Vankleek Hill Curling Club $30,000 6 months 

Vankleek Hill Music Festival $10,000 1 month 

Villa Marconi Long Term Care Center $64,000 2 years 

West Carleton Skating Club $17,500 1 year 

Westfest $30,000 1 year 

Winchester Curling Club $16,700 8 months 

Women's Initiatives for Safer Environments $50,000 1 year 

Youth Infringement Theatre Festival $5,100 1 year 

Youth Mentorship Program c/o Cornwall Youth Centre $45,000 10 months 

Total $6,936,000  
Total Grants 152  
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Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
2007 Women's World Lacrosse Festival $75,000 6 months 

4 Durham West Arts Centre c/o Durham West Arts Centre $225,000 3 years 

856 Pickering Kinsmen Royal Canadian Air Cadet Squadron $40,000 1 year 

Activity Haven Senior Centre $21,600 1 year 

Arbor Theatre $49,300 2 years 

Arts Council Haliburton Highlands $30,000 2 years 

Bancroft Community Transit $20,000 3 years 

Beaverton Figure Skating Club $32,300 1 year 

Bobcaygeon Helps $11,200 6 months 

Bobcaygeon Lawn Bowling Club $30,900 1 year 

Boys and Girls Clubs of Kawartha Lakes $30,000 8 months 

Campbellford /Seymour Community Foundation $56,300 18 months 

Canadian Hearing Society Peterborough Region c/o The Canadian Hearing Society $23,000 1 year 

Clarington Swim Club Incorporated $24,000 2 years 

Club Optimiste Francophone de Durham $13,200 1 year 

Cobourg and District Historical Society $30,000 2 years 

Colborne United Church $72,100 1 year 

Community Counselling and Resource Centre $93,300 18 months 

Community Living Campbellford/Brighton $31,500 1 year 

Community Stream Steward Program c/o Ontario Federation of Anglers & Hunters $100,500 18 months 

Comra Marine Rescue Association $30,600 1 year 

Corporation of the Township of Cramahe $11,200 1 year 

Corporation of the Township of Uxbridge $75,000 1 year 

Corporation of the Township of Uxbridge $71,000 1 year 
DCNP Expansion and Best Practices Initiative c/o Community Development Council 
Durham $174,300 3 years 

Driftwood Theatre Group $71,300 1 year 

Dunbarton-Fairport United Church $131,300 5 years 
Durham Children's Groundwater Festival c/o Central Lake Ontario Conservation 
Authority $68,000 2 years 

Durham Conservation Centre $40,000 1 year 

Durham East Softball Association $11,800 1 year 

Durham Region WrapAround c/o Literacy Network of Durham Region $220,000 3 years 

Durham Rowing Club Incorporated $73,400 1 year 

Durham Speed Skating Club c/o Ontario Speed Skating Association $14,500 1 year 

Durham West Girls' Hockey Association $41,500 1 year 

Durham Youth Housing & Support Services $75,000 1 year 

The Elizabeth Fry Society of Peterborough $15,500 1 year 

Ennismore Curling Club $33,900 1 year 

Epilepsy Durham Region $63,500 2 years 

Family Services of Haliburton County $58,700 3 years 
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Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Friends of Second Marsh $50,000 1 year 

Girl Guides of Canada-Oshawa Division $75,000 1 year 

Glendale Tennis Club $74,400 6 months 

Habitat for Humanity Peterborough and District $138,000 2 years 

Haliburton Curling Club $24,000 1 year 

Haliburton Highlands Land Trust $24,500 1 year 

Haliburton Highlands Resource Center $9,900 6 months 
Hastings and Prince Edward, Royal Canadian Army Cadets Corps 88 c/o Army 
Cadet League of Canada $39,000 1 year 

Heads up for Inclusion Amigos c/o Community Living Peterborough $24,700 1 year 

Hearth Place Cancer Support Centre $213,600 3 years 

Helping Families Succeed c/o Kawartha Halibuton Children's Aid Society $42,600 3 years 

Horizons of Friendship $53,800 2 years 

Hospice Kawartha Lakes $90,500 3 years 

Hospice Peterborough $26,000 6 months 

Job Benchmarking Initiative c/o Community Living Oshawa/Clarington $82,800 2 years 

John Howard Society of Peterborough $67,300 1 year 

Kairos Non-Profit Housing of Peterborough $25,000 1 year 

Kawartha Haliburton Crime Stoppers $32,000 2 years 

Kawartha Woodturners Guild $26,300 1 year 

Lake Plan Project c/o Stony Lake Heritage Foundation $15,000 1 year 

Lakefield Curling Club $30,000 6 months 

Lindsay Girls Hockey Association $14,000 1 year 

Lindsay Gymnastics Centre $58,000 1 year 

Little Britain Pastoral Community Official Board c/o Little Britain United Church $50,000 1 year 
Luke's Place Shelters Initiative c/o Luke's Place Support and Resource Centre for 
Women and Children $137,700 2 years 

Minden Hills Cultural Centre c/o The Township of Minden Hills $25,000 1 year 
Navy League of Canada Oshawa Branch c/o Navy League of Canada (Ontario 
Division) $15,000 1 year 

New Canadian Employment Initiative c/o New Canadians Centre Peterborough $74,800 18 months 

North House Shelter $120,000 2 years 

North Shore Amateur Radio Club Inc. $26,900 1 year 

Northumberland Children's Services Committee c/o Northumberland Services for Women $112,500 2 years 

Northumberland Services for Women $69,000 2 years 

Norwood Curling Club Incorporated $36,800 1 year 

Old Millbrook School Family Centre $42,000 2 years 

Oriana TCBC c/o Oriana Singers $19,000 2 years 

Orono Figure Skating Club Inc. $19,600 1 year 

Oshawa Minor Hockey Association $72,900 1 year 

Oshawa Ski Club $75,000 1 year 

Partners in Wetland Conservation c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $36,000 1 year 
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Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Peterborough Historical Society $75,000 18 months 

Peterborough Native Learning Program $47,000 13 months 

Pickering Ajax Italian Social Club $66,700 1 year 

A Place Called Home (Residence in Lindsay) $75,000 1 year 

Port Hope Figure Skating Club Inc. $23,400 1 year 

Port Perry Community Curling Club Inc. $32,700 1 year 

Rotary Club of Bridgenorth - Ennismore - Lakefield $21,500 1 year 

Rotary Club of Lindsay $54,300 1 year 

Royal Canadian Legion Branch #322 $75,000 1 year 

The Royal Canadian Legion - Branch 636 $25,000 1 year 

Save Our Heritage Organization $28,600 1 year 

School for Young Moms c/o Peterborough Family Resource Centre $73,500 2 years 

Seaton Trail Management c/o Oak Ridges Trail Association $21,700 18 months 

Senior Citizens' Association of Peterborough $18,300 1 year 

Shelter Valley Folk Festival $58,500 2 years 
St. John Ambulance Durham Region Branch c/o The Ontario Council of the Order of 
St. John $73,000 1 year 

Technology Alliance Group for Kawartha Lakes $11,000 4 months 

Township of Galway Cavendish and Harvey $42,100 8 months 

Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan $50,600 1 year 

Trent Valley Archives $22,600 1 year 

United Way of Ajax-Pickering $51,700 2 years 

United Way of Kawartha Lakes $50,400 1 year 
United Way Outcomes Measurement Project c/o United Way of Peterborough & 
District $199,800 5 years 

Uxbridge Celebration of the Arts $48,200 1 year 

Uxbridge Swim Club $64,200 1 year 

Victorian Operetta Society $25,600 1 year 

The Visual Arts Centre of Clarington $71,500 1 year 

Whitby Iroquois Soccer Club $57,800 1 year 

The Woodville Curling Club $16,000 1 year 

YMCA Northumberland $62,900 2 years 

Youth Emergency Shelter of Peterborough $38,300 1 year 

YWCA of Peterborough Victoria & Haliburton $25,000 9 months 

Total $6,065,200  
Total Grants 110  
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Essex, Kent, Lambton    
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
2007 Ontario Summer Paralympic Championship Organizing Committee c/o Sarnia 
Central Athletics Corporation $75,000 1 year 

Active Lifestyle Centre $68,500 1 year 
AIDS Committee of Windsor $155,100 3 years 
Association for Persons with Physical Disabilities of Windsor and Essex County $16,600 1 year 
Belle River & District Optimist Club $75,000 1 year 
Belle River Minor Baseball Association $6,500 1 year 
A Book of My Own Literacy Campaign $28,000 2 years 
Bothwell-Zone & District Historical Society $25,000 1 year 
Brooke-Alvinston Agricultural Society $54,300 1 year 
Bulimia Anorexia Nervosa Association-Can-Am/Association de la boulimie et de 
l'anorexie mentale $145,500 2 years 

Canadian Belgian Dutch Club $4,700 1 year 
Capitol Theatre and Arts Centre (Windsor) $140,000 3 years 
CAW Local 200 Computers for Kids $120,000 2 years 
Celebration of Lights Incorporated $52,000 1 year 
Centres for Seniors Windsor, Heart & Stroke Foundation Cook Book Collaborative 
c/o Centres for Seniors Windsor $6,700 1 year 

Chatham Camera Club c/o Canadian Association for Photographic Art (CAPA) $6,700 1 year 
Chatham Capitol Theatre Association $225,000 3 years 
Chatham Minor Baseball Association $25,000 1 year 
The Chatham-Kent Black Historical Society $20,500 1 year 
Chatham-Kent Children's Water Festival c/o Rondeau Watershed Coalition $89,500 2 years 
Chatham-Kent Cougars Football Club $25,000 1 year 
Citizens Environment Alliance of Southwestern Ontario $100,000 2 years 
Community-University Partnership for Neighbourhoods c/o Citizen Advocacy 
Windsor-Essex $155,700 3 years 

Corporation of the Village of Oil Springs $75,000 1 year 
The Dragon Boat Club of Windsor and Essex County $24,500 1 year 
Duart Community Hall c/o Highgate and District Lions Club $75,000 2 years 
Enhancing Family Support for Education c/o Community Living Windsor $94,400 3 years 
Erie Wildlife Rescue $22,000 1 year 
Erieau Yacht Club $12,400 1 year 
Essex County Ravens Football Club $20,900 1 year 
Essex County Soccer Association $75,000 1 year 
Essex Region Children's Water Festival Steering Committee c/o Children's Water 
Education Council $60,600 3 years 

Essex Retirees Social Club $26,500 1 year 
The Forest Community Theatre $63,100 1 year 
The Friends of Ojibway Prairie/Les Amis D'Ojibway Prairie $17,200 1 year 
Friends of Pike Creek $8,000 1 year 
Greater Windsor Lacrosse $13,700 6 months 
Greenway and Sadlers Pond Recreation Trail c/o Essex Rotary Club Foundation $87,000 2 years 
The Inn of the Good Shepherd (Sarnia) Inc. $37,000 1 year 
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Essex, Kent, Lambton (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
International Symphony Orchestra $45,100 3 years 
Irish Dance Booster Club of Windsor $11,400 1 year 
Kiwanis Children's Animal Farm Foundation $49,000 1 year 
Lakeshore Community Services $108,200 3 years 
Lambton Concert Band $25,000 1 year 
Lambton Outreach Community Services Inc. $10,900 3 years 
LaSalle Rowing Club $58,800 1 year 
Metropolitan Community Church of Windsor $39,300 1 year 
Migration Community Hall $75,000 1 year 
Moore Optimist Club $50,800 1 year 
Navy League of Canada Sarnia Branch c/o Navy League of Canada (Ontario Division) $22,500 1 year 
Ontario Creative Problem Solvers Inc. $46,100 2 years 
Optimist Club of Sombra Township $17,400 1 year 
Pointe Eagle Radio Inc. $75,000 1 year 
The Rotary Club of Windsor-Roseland $24,000 3 years 
Sandwich West Turtle Club $75,000 1 year 
Sarnia Amateur Wrestling Association c/o Ontario Amateur Wrestling Association $40,000 1 year 
Sarnia Highland Games $17,800 2 years 
Sarnia Kiwanis Foundation Inc. $75,000 1 year 
Schizophrenia Society of Ontario, Essex Kent Lambton Regional Office c/o 
Schizophrenia Society of Ontario $123,200 3 years 

The Scottish Rite Charitable Foundation Learning Centre for Children - Windsor c/o 
Scottish Rite Charitable Foundation of Canada $61,000 1 year 

The Shores of Erie International Wine Festival $115,700 2 years 
South Essex Community Council $71,000 1 year 
South Windsor Warriors Basketball Organization $5,700 1 year 
Special Equestrians Therapeutic Riding Association $68,400 3 years 
Spirit of Excellence, Inc. $75,000 3 years 
St. Joseph's Hospice Resource Centre of Sarnia Lambton $128,100 2 years 
Taxandria Falcons Soccer Club $56,000 1 year 
Theatre Kent $6,600 1 year 
Tilbury Minor Baseball $31,000 1 year 
Triple P c/o Glengarda Child and Family Services $50,000 18 months 
L'Union culturelle des Franco-Ontariennes de Windsor a/s L'Union culturelle des 
Franco-Ontariennes $24,000 1 year 

Wheatley & District Friendship Club Inc. $75,000 1 year 
Willistead Centennial c/o Essex County Historical Society $19,900 1 year 
Windsor Classic Chorale $25,000 1 year 
Windsor Jaycees Community Commons & The Herb Gray Centre for Nonprofit 
Excellence c/o Windsor Jaycees Community Centre $68,000 6 months 

Total $4,202,500   
Total Grants 75   
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Grand River   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Alternative Land Use Services - Partnership Advisory Committee (ALUS-PAC) c/o 
Long Point Foundation for Conservation $50,000 2 years 

Big Brothers & Big Sisters Association of Haldimand-Norfolk Inc. $45,700 18 months 
Black Cap Players Music and Mime Troupe $1,500 1 year 
Boys and Girls Club of Brantford $45,000 8 months 
Brant Alcove Rehabilitation Services $14,300 6 months 
Brant Curling Club Inc. $45,000 1 year 
Brant Museums and Gallery Association c/o Brant Historical Society $14,400 1 year 
Brantford Aquatic Club $9,400 1 year 
Brantford Minor Softball Association $14,800 1 year 
Brantford Pipes and Drums $25,000 1 year 
Brantford Symphony Orchestra Association Inc. $52,400 2 years 
Brantford's Canada Day Festival $29,400 16 months 
Building Bridges For Youth (Haldimand-Brant) $23,000 6 months 
Burford Pastoral Charge $8,100 1 year 
Caledonia Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $12,700 1 year 
Canada's First Forestry Station St. Williams Interpretive Centre c/o Port Rowan/South 
Walsingham Heritage Association $52,500 1 year 

Canadian National Institute of the Blind Brantford Division c/o Canadian National 
Institute for the Blind - Ontario Division $10,000 1 year 

The Children's Safety Village of Brant $70,000 2 years 
Community Builders $48,300 1 year 
Community Protocol to Protect Infants Living in At-Risk Environment c/o Children's 
Aid Society of Brant $34,000 1 year 

DIVA c/o Nova Vita Women's Shelter Incorporated $67,100 1 year 
Dunnville Lawn Bowling Club $4,600 1 year 
Etonia United Church c/o Princeton Pastoral Charge $9,000 1 year 
Family Counselling Centre of Brant $10,000 1 year 
Family Literacy Project c/o Kids Can Fly, Early Child Development and Parenting 
Support $7,500 8 months 

Girl Guides of Canada - Niagara Area $9,900 1 year 
Grand River Gymmies Inc. $15,000 1 year 
Haldimand Girl's Hockey Association (HGHA) $45,000 1 year 
Haldimand Youth Soccer Club Inc. $15,000 1 year 
Kids Can Fly, Early Child Development and Parenting Support $42,200 1 year 
Kinsmen Club of Delhi $75,000 1 year 
Long Point Basin Land Trust $71,500 2 years 
Mental Health Awareness Committee of Brant c/o Canadian Mental Health 
Association, Brant County Branch $4,000 1 year 

Norfolk Hammerheads Aquatic Club $35,000 1 year 
Norfolk Youth & Children Association $75,000 1 year 
Old Town Hall Association & Town Hall Kids c/o Old Town Hall Association $9,000 6 months 
Operation Lift $19,500 6 months 
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Grand River (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Participation House of Brantford $35,600 1 year 
Port Dover Board of Trade $25,000 6 months 

Port Dover Skating Club $10,800 2 years 
Robert Troughton Memorial Chapter c/o Canadian Council of the Blind - Ontario Division $45,600 1 year 
The Royal Canadian Legion Telephone City (Ont. No. 90) Branch $45,000 1 year 
Selkirk Centennial Community Hall Corporation $15,000 1 year 
Sexual Assault Centre of Brant $29,200 1 year 
Simcoe Rotary Friendship Festival Turkey Point Summerfest c/o Simcoe Christmas 
Panorama Inc. $71,000 2 years 

Spreading the Word Together c/o Literacy Link South Central $43,200 18 months 
St. James United Church - Simcoe $75,000 1 year 
St. Leonard's Society of Brant $29,300 1 year 
Taquanyah - A New View Collaborative c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $75,000 6 months 
Why Not City Missions Brantford $25,000 1 year 
Wraparound Brant c/o Woodview Children's Centre $60,000 2 years 

Total $1,704,500   
Total Grants 51   

 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 39 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
The Avon Trail $4,300 1 year 
Billy Bishop Heritage Museum $15,000 1 year 
Brain Injury Association of London and Region $22,100 2 years 
Bruce Community Futures Development Corporation $65,000 1 year 
Bruce County Safe Communities Partnership c/o Safe Communities Foundation $51,500 3 years 
Brussels Optimist Club $35,800 1 year 
Chepstow and District Lions Club Foundation $37,600 3 months 
Chesley Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $14,900 1 year 
Choices for Change: Alcohol, Drug and Gambling Counselling Centre $39,600 18 months 
Claybird Gun Club $13,500 2 months 
Community Living Stratford and Area $72,100 2 years 
The Corporation of the Municipality of Brockton $50,000 1 year 
The Corporation of the Municipality of West Grey $40,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of North Huron $14,400 1 year 
District 29 of the Ontario Senior Games Association c/o Ontario Senior Games 
Association $13,400 1 year 

Doors Open Stratford Perth c/o Perth County Historical Foundation $3,500 2 years 
Dundalk & District Agricultural Society $13,200 8 months 
Electric Eclectics $10,000 8 months 
Emancipation Festival $25,000 8 months 
Energy Solutions c/o Tiverton & District Lions Club $30,000 1 year 
Epilepsy Ontario Huron Perth Bruce $25,000 1 year 
Fair Play for Kids c/o Dundalk District Agricultural Society $17,400 3 months 
Freedom Trail Group C/O Grey Sauble Conservation Foundation $43,000 1 year 
Friends of Sauble Beach $16,900 1 year 
Gallery 96 $32,500 2 years 
Grey Bruce Autism Consulting Network c/o Autism Society Ontario $46,500 1 year 
Grey Bruce Cultural Network Steering Committee c/o Sheatre Educational Alternative 
Theatre $20,000 1 year 

Habitat for Humanity Grey Bruce $80,800 17 months 
Habitat for Humanity Huron County $85,000 2 years 
Headwaters Healthy Wetlands Project Collaborative c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $30,500 3 years 
Home and Community Support Services of Grey-Bruce $14,300 1 year 
Huron Hospice Volunteer Service $25,600 1 year 
Huron United Way $58,200 2 years 
Kemble Women's Institute c/o Federated Women's Institutes of Ontario $15,000 1 year 
Lake Huron Learning Collaborative Inc. $81,200 2 years 
Lions Club of Atwood $45,000 1 year 
Listowel Legionaire Baseball Club $40,000 8 months 
The Marsh Street Community Centre $38,200 3 years 
Midwestern Adult Day Services $35,000 1 year 
The Monkton Curling Club $15,900 1 year 
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Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
The Monkton Lions Club $50,000 1 year 
Municipality of Huron East $5,300 3 months 
Municipality of Kincardine $35,400 6 months 
Municipality of South Bruce $15,000 1 year 
Ontario Special Olympics Inc. $50,500 1 year 
Optimist Club of Monkton and District Inc. $21,500 1 year 
Osprey Museum $13,900 1 year 
Paddy Walker Heritage Society $61,000 3 years 

Pioneer Hall Revitalization c/o Township of Georgian Bluffs $24,500 3 months 
Port Elgin Curling Club $15,000 2 months 
The Quilt:  A Breast Cancer Support Project $31,500 3 years 
The Reuben R. Sallows Arts Gallery Inc. $37,000 3 years 
Saugeen Shores Skate Park Committee $30,000 1 year 
Sheatre Educational Alternative Theatre (Huron) $75,200 3 years 
South Bruce-Grey Branch Architectural Conservancy of Ontario c/o Architectural 
Conservancy of Ontario. $15,000 1 year 

South Grey Bruce Youth Literacy Council $62,700 3 years 
Southampton Art Society $45,000 1 year 
Southampton Curling Club $15,000 6 months 
St. John Ambulance, Stratford Branch c/o The Ontario Council of the Order of St. John $23,000 6 months 
Stratford Meals on Wheels and Neighbourly Services $75,200 3 years 
Town and Country Support Services $46,000 2 years 
United Way of Bruce Grey $30,900 1 year 
West Perth Wetland Collaborative c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $45,000 1 year 
Wiarton and District Curling Club $35,000 3 months 

Total $2,195,500   
Total Grants 64   
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Halton-Peel    
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Acton Agricultural Society $100,000 1 year 
Acton Aqua Ducks $75,500 4 years 
Acton Curling Club $70,000 1 year 
The Archers of Caledon $22,300 1 year 
The Black Community Action Network of Peel c/o African Community Services of Peel $75,000 1 year 
The Bolton Tennis Club $73,500 1 year 
Bramalea Gymnastics Club Inc. $125,700 3 years 
Brampton Neighbourhood Resource Centre $225,000 3 years 
Brampton Youth Hockey Association $153,600 3 years 
Brampton-Caledon Orchestra $22,300 1 year 
Brams United Girls Soccer $20,000 1 year 
Burlington Community Foundation $90,000 3 years 
Burlington Curling Club $40,000 1 year 
Burlington Historical Society $24,100 9 months 
Burlington Track & Field Club Inc. $65,000 1 year 
Caledon Community Services $67,000 2 years 
Camelot Centre Adult Day Program $69,200 2 years 
Canadian Psychiatric Research Foundation $75,000 3 years 
Carabram Brampton's Multicultural Festival $69,000 1 year 
Catholic Family Services of Peel-Dufferin $230,000 4 years 
Centre Culturel de Ressources Francophones pour les Communautés Ethniques 
(CEREFRAC) $10,000 1 year 

Centre francophone de santé communautaire de Mississauga $134,000 2 years 
Community Development Halton $192,100 3 years 
Community Living North Halton $63,700 1 year 
Crusaders Rugby Club $24,000 1 year 
Danielle's Place Eating Disorder Support and Resource Centre $164,900 3 years 
Devereaux House Preservation Project c/o Georgetown Soccer Club $100,000 1 year 
Dorado Stars Swim Club $54,500 1 year 
Employment Options for the Developmentally Handicapped (Mississauga) $220,200 3 years 
FoodPath (Interfaith Peel Association to Tackle Hunger) $21,300 1 year 
Full Circle Judo Club $25,000 1 year 
Gateway Centre for New Canadians $50,000 1 year 
Georgetown Choral Society $30,000 1 year 
Georgetown Skating Club $28,000 1 year 
Get Active Mississauga - YMCA Mississauga c/o YMCA of Greater Toronto $271,400 4 years 
Habitat for Humanity Halton $207,000 3 years 
Halton Family Services $14,500 6 months 
Halton Healthy Community Funding Consortium c/o Regional Municipality of Halton $47,200 1 year 
Halton Hills Community Support and Information (HHCSI) $225,000 3 years 
Healthy Mississauga 2010 Plan c/o United Way of Peel Region $255,000 4 years 
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Halton-Peel (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Home and Vehicle Modification Program c/o Erinoak Serving Young Persons with 
Physical Disabilities $225,000 3 years 

Hope Place Centres $14,600 1 year 
Ian Anderson Resource Centre $150,000 2 years 
Intrada Brass of Oakville $26,400 1 year 
Kalayaan Cultural Community Centre $100,000 1 year 

The Kerr Log House Feasibility Project c/o Caledon Heritage Foundation $25,000 6 months 
Labour Community Services of Peel $150,000 3 years 
Mississauga Hockey League $25,000 1 year 
Mississauga Ringette Association $31,700 1 year 
Mississauga Swimming c/o Mississauga Swimming Development Club (MSDC) $64,400 1 year 
Mississauga West Youth Initiative Collaborative c/o Erin Mills United Church $285,900 4 years 
Mississauga Youth Orchestra $18,300 1 year 
Oakville Arts Council and World of Threads Festival 2007 c/o Oakville Arts Council $5,100 1 year 
Oakville Curling Club $32,000 1 year 
Oakville Music & Art Shared Space Inc. (M.A.S.S.) $215,000 3 years 
Oakville Waterfront Festival $65,000 2 years 
Ontario Cricket Development Organization $25,000 1 year 
Ontario Electric Railway Association Inc. $35,000 1 year 
Our Community Cares c/o Halton Child and Youth Services $166,000 3 years 
Our Kids Network c/o Halton Children's Aid Society $104,100 3 years 
Outreach Program Collaborative c/o Art Gallery of Mississauga $216,000 4 years 
Partners for Helping at Risk Youth in Peel c/o Social Planning Council of Peel $264,000 4 years 
Peel Children's Centre $100,000 1 year 
Peel Committee Against Woman Abuse c/o Interim Place $215,000 3 years 
Peel Halton Youth Basketball Association $58,500 2 years 
Peel Lunch and After School Program - Child Care Services $60,000 2 years 
Project Lifesaver c/o Brampton Caledon Community Living $92,600 3 years 
Punjabi Arts Association of Toronto $21,100 18 months 
Region of Peel & Credit River Watershed Natural Areas Inventory c/o Credit Valley 
Conservation $197,700 4 years 

Regional Diversity Roundtable c/o Social Planning Council of Peel $207,000 3 years 
Roger Casement's Gaelic Athletic Club $4,100 1 year 
Seniors Life Enhancement Centres $12,500 9 months 
Shifra Homes Inc. $191,000 3 years 
Southside Shuffle Blues & Jazz Festival $85,900 2 years 
St. John Fisher Early Years Partnership c/o Brampton Neighbourhood Resource 
Centre $216,600 3 years 

St. Leonard's House (Peel) $80,700 1 year 
St. Paul's United Church - Oakville $67,000 1 year 
Summit Housing & Outreach Programs $38,500 1 year 
Tecumseh Tennis Club $35,600 1 year 
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Halton-Peel (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Vancliffen Arts Foundation $5,000 6 months 
Victorian Order of Nurses - Halton Branch $78,000 3 years 
Visual Arts Mississauga $271,300 4 years 
White Oaks Park Tennis Club $9,000 1 year 
The Women's Centre $25,000 6 months 
Youth Peace Leaders: Youth Leading the Way to Healthy and Tolerant Communities 
c/o Inter-Cultural Neighbourhood Social Services $225,000 3 years 

Total $8,370,600   
Total Grants 85   
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Hamilton    
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Affordable Housing Flagship c/o Social Planning & Research Council of Hamilton $135,000 2 years 
Afro-Canadian Caribbean Association of Hamilton & District $153,000 3 years 
Air Cadet League of Canada #779 Black Knight Squadron $19,900 6 months 
Arts Hamilton $8,000 6 months 
Bruce Trail Association c/o Hamilton Conservation Authority $74,600 1 year 
CANUSA Games $105,000 2 years 
Catholic Children's Aid Society of Hamilton $70,000 1 year 
Catholic Family Services of Hamilton-Wentworth $75,000 1 year 
Child Connect c/o St. Leonard's Society of Hamilton $207,700 3 years 
Coalition afro-francophone de Hamilton a/s Association des Tchadiens de l'Ontario $35,500 1 year 
The Community Adolescent Network of Hamilton $153,000 4 years 
Dundas Arts & Craft Community Foundation $75,000 1 year 
The Elizabeth Fry Society Hamilton Branch $147,200 2 years 
Enabling Institutional Change through Community Partnership c/o Settlement and 
Integration Services Organization $225,000 3 years 

Equestrian Association for the Disabled $116,000 2 years 
Ethiopian Association of Hamilton $2,500 1 year 
Fetal Alcohol Syndrome Disorder Task Force c/o Rygiel Supports for Community 
Living $136,000 2 years 

Hamilton Angling and Hunting $70,700 9 months 
The Hamilton Follies Inc. $39,100 1 year 
Hamilton Junior Football Club Inc. $14,700 1 year 
Hamilton Philharmonic Youth Orchestra $26,200 1 year 
Hamilton Wentworth Aquatic Club $34,500 1 year 
Hamilton-Wentworth Green Venture $30,000 1 year 
Imperial Cotton Centre for the Arts $75,000 1 year 
Interval House of Hamilton-Wentworth $92,800 2 years 
Leander Boat Club of Hamilton $30,000 1 year 
Mission Services of Hamilton Inc. $75,000 1 year 
North End Breezes c/o North Hamilton Community Health Centre $37,900 1 year 
North Hamilton Community Health Centre $131,800 30 months 
The Optimist Club of Strabane $50,000 1 year 
Peer Specialists Job Development Group c/o Mental Health Rights Coalition of 
Hamilton $20,000 1 year 

Planned Parenthood Society of Hamilton $10,000 1 year 
St. John's Senior Club #1154 c/o United Senior Citizens of Ontario $2,000 6 months 
St. Mark's Co-operative Preschool c/o Today's Family-Caring For Your Child $28,000 1 year 
Stoney Creek United Church $34,800 1 year 
Welcome Inn Community Centre $50,000 1 year 
Woodview Children's Centre - Hamilton $200,400 3 years 
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Hamilton (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Workers Arts and Heritage Centre Inc. $44,700 1 year 
The YMCA of Hamilton/Burlington $31,500 1 month 
Youth Serving Agencies Network Grow Program c/o Settlement and Integration 
Services Organization $144,900 2 years 

Total $3,012,400   
Total Grants 40   
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Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Almaguin Nipissing Travel Association Incorporated $32,000 1 year 
Armour Ryerson & Burk's Falls 'OUR COMMUNITY WORKS' c/o The Village of 
Burk's Falls $30,000 18 months 

Association canadienne-française de l'Ontario, région Témiskaming $34,800 1 year 
Bracebridge Arts Council $74,800 6 months 
Community Living Parry Sound $46,100 1 year 
Compagnons des francs loisirs $31,100 7 months 
The Corporation of the Municipality of West Nipissing $24,500 6 months 
The Corporation of the Town of Cobalt $4,400 6 months 
Corporation of the Township of East Ferris $47,600 6 months 
Corporation of the Township of James $23,600 1 year 
Discovery Routes Trails Organization $27,300 14 months 
Eagle Lake Conservation Association $11,800 1 year 
Englehart Nordic Ski Club Inc. $30,000 1 year 
The Friends...Supporting Those with Long Term Health Care Needs $16,500 1 year 
Gurd & Area Historical Corporation $41,800 9 months 
Huntsville Association For the Performing Arts $15,500 1 year 
Huntsville Rotary Youthpark c/o Rotary Club of Huntsville, Ontario, Canada 
Incorporated $31,200 1 year 

KwisKwa Ratepayers Association $40,500 8 months 
Lake of Bays Marine Museum and Navigation Society $62,000 1 year 
Lake of Bays Sailing Club Inc. $21,700 6 months 
Macaulay Tree House Day Nursery $11,300 1 year 
Mahingan Development Corporation $15,000 1 year 
Municipality of Powassan $28,200 1 year 
Muskoka Planning Council for Children c/o Family Youth and Children's Services of 
Muskoka $31,000 1 year 

Muskoka-Parry Sound Community Mental Health Service $44,500 1 year 
Near North Heritage Group c/o Gurd & Area Historical Corporation $40,000 14 months 
Nipissing First Nation $31,300 8 months 
North Bay & District Association for Community Living $11,800 6 months 
North Bay and Area Community Foundation $33,200 1 year 
North Bay Canoe Club $22,800 14 months 
North Bay Guild of Artisans $63,200 16 months 
The North Bay Literacy Council $25,300 1 year 
North Bay Nordic Ski Club $9,000 6 months 
North Bay Ski Racing Club c/o Ontario Alpine Ski Team $25,000 1 year 
Packsac Smiles Organization $5,800 1 year 
Parry Sound Area Community Business & Development Centre Inc. $20,100 1 year 
Patrick 4 Life AIDS Awareness and Education $62,600 6 months 
Royal Canadian Legion Branch 254 $43,000 1 year 
South Muskoka Sailing Club $24,000 1 year 
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Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Sports Heritage and Arts Performance in Education c/o Town of Parry Sound $39,600 15 months 
String Ensemble Project c/o The Temiskaming Festival of Music $24,600 3 years 
Sundridge Strong Joly (SSJ) Arena, Hall & Ballfield c/o Corporation of the Township 
of Strong $43,900 1 year 

Temagami Angele Project Committee c/o North Bay Theatre and Arts Community 
Centre $39,700 8 months 

Temiskaming Nordic Ski Club $75,000 1 year 
Town of Mattawa/Mattawa Voyageur Days Team c/o Corporation of the Town of 
Mattawa $70,000 6 months 

Tri-Town Ski Village $38,700 1 year 
West Muskoka Ringette Association c/o Ontario Ringette Association $26,200 1 year 
White Water Gallery $7,600 1 year 
Windermere Women's Institute c/o Federated Women's Institutes of Ontario $22,700 3 years 

Total $1,582,300   
Total Grants 49   
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Niagara   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
613 Royal Canadian Army Cadet Corps c/o Army Cadet League of Canada (Ontario) $12,200 1 year 
Adolescent's Family Support Services of Niagara $35,000 1 year 
Aerial Experiment Association 2005 $16,700 2 years 
Alzheimer Society of Niagara Region $64,000 2 years 
Artistic Energy Gymnastics Club $75,000 6 months 
Association Canadienne Française du Niagara $90,000 2 years 
Benevolent Society 'Heidehof' for the Care of the Aged $75,000 1 year 
Bethesda Home for the Mentally Handicapped Inc. $51,500 3 years 
Bethlehem Not-For-Profit Housing Projects of Niagara $85,100 30 months 
Binational Doors Open Niagara Project c/o Binational Tourism Alliance (BTA) $30,000 2 years 
The British Methodist Episcopal Church, Niagara Falls $63,000 3 years 
Canadian Mental Health Association, Association Canadienne Pour La Sante 
Mentale, Niagara Branch $180,000 3 years 

Le Centre Polyvalent des Aines Francophones de Port Colborne $46,500 2 years 
The Children's Discovery Centre of Niagara Inc. $84,000 2 years 
City of Port Colborne $37,900 6 months 
Club 2000 Niagara Inc. $74,500 2 years 
Le Club LaSalle $54,800 18 months 
Club Roma $32,000 1 year 
Community Living Port Colborne-Wainfleet $125,500 3 years 
Corporation of the Town of Pelham $65,000 1 year 
Dalhousie Yacht Club $35,300 6 months 
Epilepsy Niagara $120,000 3 years 
Fonthill Rotary Club Foundation $32,200 1 year 
Fort Erie Community YMCA $14,100 6 months 
Fort Erie Festival $124,800 3 years 
The Foundation of Resources for Teens $10,000 1 year 
Glendale Day Care $23,000 6 months 
Habitat for Humanity Niagara $65,000 1 year 
Heartland Forest Nature Experience $69,000 2 years 
Hospice Niagara $150,000 2 years 
Lake Erie Shore Branch Navy League of Canada c/o The Navy League of Canada 
(Ontario Division) $11,200 1 year 

Music on the Henley $8,000 1 year 
Niagara Chapter - Native Women Inc. $99,000 3 years 
Niagara Falls Big Brothers Big Sisters Association Inc. $20,000 18 months 
Niagara Falls Curling Club $38,200 6 months 
Niagara Falls Nature Club $4,800 6 months 
Niagara Girls Minor Softball Association $38,700 1 year 
Niagara Hindu Samaj $48,400 3 years 
Niagara Historical Society $23,300 8 months 
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Niagara (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Niagara Integrated Community Planning Project c/o Peace Bridge New Comers 
Centre $20,000 3 months 

Niagara Regional Athletics $30,000 1 year 
Niagara Regional Literacy Council $25,100 1 year 
The Niagara Symphony Association $63,200 3 years 
Niagara Wasps Rugby Football Club $5,800 1 year 
Niagara West Community Hospice $131,500 2 years 
Pelham Soccer Club Inc. $10,000 6 months 
Pelham Tennis Association c/o The Corporation of the Town of Pelham $14,500 1 year 
Port Colborne Marine Auxiliary Rescue $21,600 1 year 
Port Dalhousie Lions Club $50,000 1 year 
The School of Restoration Arts at Willowbank $114,000 2 years 
St. Catharines Minor Hockey Association $60,000 2 years 
St. Catharines Ringette Association $13,300 1 year 
Stamford Centre Volunteer Firemen's Association $62,500 1 year 
Start Me Up Niagara $60,000 2 years 
Tourisme Franco-Niagara c/o Entreprise Niagara/Venture Niagara $47,800 1 year 
Twenty Valley Tourism Association $8,100 6 months 
West Niagara Family Centre Inc. $19,600 1 year 

The Winter Club of St. Catharines $11,600 1 year 
Total $3,001,300   

Total Grants 58   
 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 50 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

Northwestern    
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Alzheimer Society of Thunder Bay $129,000 3 years 
Beaten Path Nordic Ski Club $14,700 1 year 
Casque Isles Hiking Trail Project c/o Corporation of the Township of Terrace Bay $24,500 1 year 
Catholic Family Development Centre $12,000 1 year 
Centre Culturel Francophone de Geraldton $75,000 6 months 
Centre des femmes francophones du Nord-Ouest de l'Ontario $15,000 1 year 
City of Dryden $14,300 1 year 
Community Arts & Heritage Education Project $115,000 2 years 
Community Living Thunder Bay $69,000 2 years 
Community Mental Health Support Services of the Kenora Association for 
Community Living $45,000 18 months 

Les Copains de Nakina $40,800 3 months 
Corporation of the Township of Emo $13,000 1 year 
Drug Awareness Committee of Thunder Bay $46,500 3 years 
Dryden Youth Soccer Club $75,000 1 year 
Ear Falls 2000 Healthy Community Program $12,000 1 year 
Fort Frances Curling Club $15,000 1 year 
Fort Frances Visserettes and Boys Gymnastics Club $32,000 1 year 
Geraldton Concert Series $45,000 1 year 
Iskatewizaagegan Independent First Nation #39 $15,000 1 year 
Keewatin Curling Club $36,500 1 year 
Kenora and Lake of the Woods Regional Community Foundation $44,500 2 years 
Kids & Company Fort Frances Family Performing Artists Series $4,800 3 months 
Lake of the Woods Aero Modelers $22,200 6 months 
Lakehead Canoe Club $32,000 1 year 
Lakehead Social Planning Council $75,000 1 year 
Leadership Thunder Bay $15,000 1 year 
The Marathon Cross Country Ski Club $10,500 1 year 
Mount Evergreen Ski Club $58,300 1 year 
Northwestern Ontario Crime Stoppers Inc. $45,000 3 years 
Northwestern Ontario FASD Collaborative c/o Wassay Gezhig Na Nahn Dah We 
Igamig Health Access Centre $75,000 1 year 

Ojibways of Onigaming First Nation $15,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Robert Frost Branch 133 $54,900 1 year 
Shelter House/Thunder Bay $115,000 2 years 
Skills and Trades Expo c/o The Northwest Training and Adjustment Board $24,400 1 year 
St. Andrew's Roman Catholic Church $75,000 1 year 
Terrace Bay Superior Seniors Club $13,800 1 year 
Thunder Bay Blues Society $18,900 1 year 
Thunder Bay Good Food Box c/o Northwestern Ontario Women's Centre $103,300 3 years 
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Northwestern (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Thunder Bay Gymnastics Association $13,000 1 year 
United Way of Thunder Bay $74,000 1 year 
Web-Equay Mamo-No-Kii-Win (Webequie's Women's Group) $38,000 1 year 

Total $1,771,900   
Total Grants 41   
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Quinte, Kingston, Rideau   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Active 2010-Kingston Gets Active c/o Kingston Family YMCA $120,000 30 months 
Bancroft Community Transit $55,000 3 years 
Bancroft Skating Club $10,400 1 year 
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Kingston $82,100 2 years 
Brockville and Area YMCA $19,600 1 year 
Brockville Country Club $48,900 1 year 
Centre Hastings Skatepark Committee c/o Community Futures Development 
Corporation of North & Central Hastings and South Algonquin $17,800 1 year 

Centre Hastings Skatepark Committee c/o Community Futures Development 
Corporation of North & Central Hastings and South Algonquin $15,000 6 months 

Community Care for North Hastings $48,000 1 year 
Community Living Kingston $57,100 1 year 
CORK/Sail Kingston Inc. $24,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Municipality of Tweed $29,500 1 year 
Corporation of the Town of Deseronto $75,000 2 years 
The Corporation of the Town of Mississippi Mills $49,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Town of Smiths Falls $15,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Town of Smiths Falls $25,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Beckwith $26,800 6 months 
Corporation of the Township of Beckwith $13,700 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Front of Yonge $15,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Lanark Highlands $26,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Madoc $15,000 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Wollaston $41,700 1 year 
Corporation Town of Perth $52,000 1 year 
Crow Lake Community Association $56,000 1 year 
Dawn House Women's Shelter $14,800 1 year 
Elgin and Area Heritage Society (EAHS) $25,000 1 year 
Experience Summer c/o North Hastings Community Integration Association $33,000 2 years 
Friendship Hall Association $25,000 6 months 
Frontenac Girls Hockey Association $14,200 1 year 
Fun With Books $94,200 3 years 
Gananoque Curling Club $50,000 6 months 
Grenville Fish and Game Club $25,000 3 months 
Kemptville and District Lacrosse Association $28,800 6 months 
Kingston Chamber Choir $21,000 3 years 
Kingston Frontenac Public Library $35,500 1 year 
Kingston Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $15,500 6 months 
Kingston Symphony Association $25,000 1 year 
Kingston Theatre Organ Society $40,000 1 year 
Kinsmen Club of Belleville Inc. $50,600 1 year 
Lanark County Community Justice Program Inc. $25,000 6 months 
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Quinte, Kingston, Rideau (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Lanark County Interval House $40,000 2 years 
Land O'Lakes Community Services $50,000 1 year 
Learning Disabilities Association of Kingston & District $130,000 18 months 

Leeds & Grenville 2007 Plowing Match Corporation $39,500 10 months 
Lennox Agricultural Society $15,000 1 year 
Lombardy Agricultural Society $33,700 6 months 
Loyalist Gymnastics Club $36,500 1 year 
Loyalist Township Minor Hockey Association Incorporated $12,000 1 year 
Marmora and Area Curling Club $43,700 1 year 
McDonalds Corners Agricultural Society $10,600 3 months 
Municipality of Marmora & Lake $50,000 1 year 
Municipality of Rideau Lakes $25,000 1 year 
North Hastings Community Cupboard $43,000 18 months 
North Hastings Families First c/o North Hastings Children's Services $34,600 4 years 
North Lanark Historical Society $25,000 1 year 
Pakenham Fiddle and Stepdance Competition c/o Almonte Civitan Club $25,000 4 months 
Perth and District Food Bank $25,000 1 year 
Plainfield Community Homes $40,000 2 years 
Prince Edward County Arts Council $25,000 1 year 
Prince Edward County Cultural Round Table c/o Taste the County $32,500 15 months 
Prince Edward County Marathon $25,000 1 year 
Prince Edward On-line c/o Prince Edward Historical Society $43,500 1 year 
Prince Edward-Hastings Habitat for Humanity $35,000 1 year 
Quinte Adult Day School $19,300 1 year 
Quinte Community Learning - Bridging The Gap $40,000 1 year 
Quinte Therapeutic Riding Association $12,500 1 year 
Quinte West Community Development Council $75,000 1 year 
Recreation Outreach Centre $54,000 2 years 
Rideau Waterway Land Trust Foundation $12,000 9 months 
Rockport Recreation Hall Committee $34,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Branch 475-Kitley-Toledo $15,100 3 months 
Royal Canadian Legion, Branch 484 $50,000 6 months 
Skeleton Park Music Festival $5,200 5 months 
Smiths Falls Civitan Club Inc. $23,400 4 months 
Smiths Falls Community Theatre Foundation $44,100 1 year 
Smiths Falls Gym Stars Gymnastics Club $25,000 1 year 
Smiths Falls Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $17,800 1 year 
Softball Napanee Association Inc. $25,000 1 year 
Sorting Through The Maze c/o North Hastings Community Integration Association $8,600 1 year 
Southeastern Ontario Regional Dementia Network c/o Alzheimer Society of Leeds-
Grenville $74,100 18 months 
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Quinte, Kingston, Rideau (continued)    
Organization Name Amount Term 
Spencerville Mill Foundation $25,000 6 months 
St. Lawrence Shakespeare Theatrical Company $6,900 1 year 
SWITCH - Kingston's Alternative Energy Cluster $105,000 3 years 
Tales and Tunes for Tots c/o Lennox and Addington Resources for Children $77,500 2 years 
Tay Valley Township $8,800 3 months 
Thousand Islanders Chorus $25,000 2 years 
Town of Bancroft $75,000 1 year 
Town of Bancroft $33,200 1 year 
Township of Addington Highlands $75,000 1 year 
The Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal $6,200 6 months 
Trent Port Historical Society $10,600 1 year 
Trenton Care & Share Food Bank $10,700 2 years 
Trenton Columbus Club Incorporated $12,800 1 year 
Trenton Senior Citizens Club 105 $10,800 6 months 
Tsi Kionhnheht ne Onkwawenna Language Circle $35,000 1 year 
Youth Diversion Program Serving Frontenac County $126,400 30 months 
Youth Employment Assistance Headquarters Inc. $60,000 2 years 

Total $3,538,800   
Total Grants 97   
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Simcoe-York   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
211 Simcoe County c/o United Way of South Georgian Bay $150,000 2 years 
Alternatives: Integrating People with Cognitive Challenges $299,000 5 years 
Alzheimer Society of North East Simcoe County $68,000 2 years 
Ardeleana Chamber Music Society $36,000 2 years 
Askennonia Senior Centre $88,500 4 years 
Barrie Community Tennis Club $30,000 3 years 
Barrie Gun Club Inc. $51,700 1 year 
Barrie Ontario Chapter of the Barbershop Harmony Society, County Chordsmen $13,800 18 months 
Barrie Rowing Club $135,000 4 years 
Barrie's Ribbons of Hope $23,600 1 year 
Bayview Hill Seniors Program c/o Carefirst Seniors and Community Services 
Association $137,000 2 years 

Beausoleil Family Health Centre $141,000 3 years 
Blue Mountain Foundation for the Arts $70,300 2 years 
Bocce Community United c/o Markham Bocce Association $25,000 6 months 
C.O.P.E.  Canine Opportunity, People Empowerment $90,000 2 years 
Canadian National Shuffleboard Association (1999) Association Canadienne 
Nationale Du Shuffleboard (1999) $8,000 6 months 

Canadian Psychiatric Research Foundation $75,000 3 years 
Canadian Spinal Research Organization $42,200 1 year 
Centre d'alphabétisation - Huronie $80,700 2 years 
Chippewas of Georgina Island First Nation $193,000 3 years 
Col Fred Tilston V.C. Branch 385 Royal Canadian Legion $100,000 1 year 
Cold Creek Stewardship Collaborative c/o Corporation of the Township of King $191,900 3 years 
Coldwater Canadiana Heritage Museum $56,600 1 year 
Collingwood Clippers Swim Club $31,500 2 years 
Collingwood Sailing School $47,900 1 year 
Common Roof c/o New Path Foundation $113,400 2 years 
Earth Rangers Foundation $45,000 1 year 
Evergreen Hospice Markham-Stouffville $13,700 6 months 
Formosa Evergreen Senior Citizens Centre $14,800 3 months 
Furry Friends Animal Shelter Inc. $9,200 3 months 
Georgian Bay Steam, Auto, Gas, & Antique Inc. $27,000 1 year 
Georgian Bay Volunteer Search and Rescue $32,900 6 months 
Georgina Trades Trading Inc. $100,000 6 months 
Girl Guides of Canada-Guides du Canada: Toronto Area $11,400 1 year 
Girls on the Run Simcoe County Inc. $88,000 3 years 
Great Lakes Sea Kayaking Association $8,800 1 year 
Habitat for Humanity South Georgian Bay $108,000 3 years 
Helpmate Community Information & Volunteer Bureau and Information Aurora c/o 
Helpmate Community Information & Volunteer Bureau $166,300 3 years 

Heritage Unionville $20,000 1 year 
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Simcoe-York (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
The Historic Marine Association of Canada (Atlantic Challenge Canada) $14,800 6 months 
Homeless Emergency Link for People (H.E.L.P.) c/o The Elizabeth Fry Society of 
Simcoe County $133,300 3 years 

Horses At Heart Therapeutic Equestrian Adventures Inc. $25,000 1 year 

Hospice Orillia $30,000 2 years 
Hospices of York Region c/o Hospice Georgina $75,300 2 years 
Huron United Way $22,000 2 years 
Huronia Stewardship Collaborative c/o The Couchiching Conservancy $95,900 3 years 
Ja'ffari Islamic Housing Corporation - Crescent Village Trust c/o Ja'ffari Islamic 
Housing Corporation $48,500 18 months 

Kempenfelt Community Players $72,500 3 years 
King City Skating Club $35,000 3 years 
Kingfest Music Inc. $100,000 3 years 
Lake Simcoe Arts Foundation $98,000 2 years 
Lake Simcoe Community Power Collaborative c/o Windfall Ecology Centre $150,000 2 years 
Learning Disabilities Association of York Region $146,000 2 years 
Markham Arts Council $68,500 2 years 
Markham Jazz Festival $30,000 1 year 
Markham Sport Council $121,500 2 years 
Metro Toronto Movement for Literacy $30,200 3 years 
New Horizon c/o COSTI Immigrant Services $190,500 3 years 
Newmarket Ont. Chapter of SPEBSQSA Inc. $15,800 1 year 
Newmarket Soccer Club $135,000 3 years 
Nobleton Skating Club $55,600 2 years 
Oak Ridges Friends of the Environment Neighbourhood Resource Guide Team c/o 
Oak Ridges Lions Club $22,500 1 year 

Oak Ridges Soccer Club $91,000 2 years 
Ontario Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals $99,900 2 years 
The Orillia Museum of Art & History $104,000 2 years 
Orillia Rowing Club $75,600 2 years 
Rebuilding Hope c/o Sharon Temple Museum Society $202,000 3 years 
Richmond Hill Community Sports Council $27,500 1 year 
Richmond Hill Naturalists $14,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion Sutton & District (Ont. No. 356) Branch $75,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Branch # 488, Brechin Mara $46,700 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Branch 34, Orillia $75,000 1 year 
Shadowpath Theatre Productions c/o Theatre Aurora $172,800 3 years 
The Sharing Place Orillia Incorporated $61,600 1 year 
Simcoe County Alliance to End Homelessness c/o United Way of Greater Simcoe 
County $90,000 3 years 

South Simcoe Community Information Centre $162,600 3 years 
Spirit of Life $152,600 3 years 
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Simcoe-York (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
St. Andrews Co-operative Playschool $72,900 1 year 
Stayner Lawn Bowling Club Inc. $37,400 1 year 
Stouffville Skating Club $45,000 1 year 
Street Kids Survivors Inc. $217,000 3 years 
Theatre Ontario $19,200 6 months 
Town of Penetanguishene c/o Penetanguishene Sports Hall of Fame $134,600 2 years 
Township of Clearview $100,000 6 months 
Township of Springwater $24,000 1 year 
Track Committee c/o St. Theresa's Parent Teacher Association $100,000 1 year 
Vaughan African Canadian Association $20,000 6 months 
Voice Impact Project Theatre Troupe Inc. $25,000 2 years 
Voice of the Vedas Cultural Sabha Inc. $73,700 1 year 
Wasaga Beach Co-operative Nursery School Corporation $5,300 1 year 
Wolf's Den Archers Inc. $30,000 1 year 
World House Exhibit c/o Sharon Temple Museum Society $75,000 6 months 
Wye Marsh Wildlife Centre $179,000 3 years 
York Region Community Foundation $107,500 3 years 
York Region Violence Against Women Coordinating Committee c/o Women's Support 
Network of York Region $141,900 3 years 

York Region Youth Outreach Initiative c/o Pathways for Children, Youth and Families $74,000 1 year 
York Synchronized Swim Club $54,000 2 years 

Total $7,645,900   
Total Grants 97   
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Thames Valley   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
2005 Memorial Cup Host Organizing Committee $30,000 9 months 
27 (City of London) Squadron Air Cadet Sponsoring Committee $23,600 3 months 
427 Wing (London) Royal Canadian Air Force Association $19,000 1 year 
Alzheimer Society of London and Middlesex $135,000 3 years 
Ausable Community Centre $45,400 1 year 
Aylmer and District Museum $10,500 6 months 
Aylmer Lawn Bowling Club $13,800 1 year 
Beattie Haven $67,000 6 months 
Belmont Lions Club $23,500 1 year 
Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Ingersoll, Tillsonburg and Area $54,000 2 years 
Brain Injury Association of London and Region $66,300 2 years 
Canterbury Folk Festival $15,000 1 year 
Chippewas of the Thames First Nation Council $40,100 1 year 
Club Cartier $31,000 1 year 
Community Living London $63,900 1 year 
Corporation of the Township of Zorra $30,000 3 years 
Corporation of the Village of Newbury $20,000 6 months 
Dads Can $43,500 1 year 
Doors Open London c/o Heritage London Foundation $30,600 3 years 
Dutton Co-operative Child Care Centre Inc. $13,500 6 months 
Eating Disorders Association of London Inc. $80,000 2 years 
Ecoelgin Environmental Society $6,000 6 months 
Elgin Stewardship Council Collaborative c/o West Elgin Nature Trust $72,000 3 years 
Elgin-St. Thomas Youth Employment Counselling Centre $30,000 6 months 
Epilepsy Support Centre $51,100 1 year 
Etonia United Church c/o Princeton Pastoral Charge $9,000 1 year 
Forest City Gymnastics Club $25,300 1 month 
Forest City Velodrome Association $53,800 1 year 
Forests for Life c/o Woodstock and District Developmental Services $108,000 3 years 
German-Canadian Club Inc. $40,000 2 months 
Hawk Cliff Foundation $8,000 3 months 
Home County Folk League $4,600 1 year 
Independent Living Residences for the Deafblind in Ontario $50,000 1 year 
Ingersoll Creative Arts Centre $31,200 1 year 
Ingersoll District Curling Club $40,000 6 months 
Kala Manjari - A Celebration of the Performing Arts of India $58,000 1 year 
Komoka Railway Museum $27,500 1 year 
Lions Club of St. Thomas $48,000 1 year 
The Lions Club of Strathroy Ontario $67,500 1 year 
London and District Distress Centre Inc. $54,300 2 years 
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Thames Valley (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
London Arts Council $19,600 1 year 
London Falcons Football Club $31,100 1 year 
London Harm Reduction Coalition $6,300 6 months 

The London Minor Football Association $21,000 6 months 
The London Pacers Running Club $11,700 1 year 
London Speed Skating Club c/o Ontario Speed Skating Association $12,000 1 year 
London Synchro Club $18,400 1 year 
London Youth Service Providers Training Subcommittee c/o South London 
Neighbourhood Resource Centre $25,500 1 year 

London-Middlesex Children's Water Festival c/o Upper Thames River Conservation 
Authority $41,700 5 months 

Lucan Community Center Kitchen Fund c/o Township of Lucan Biddulph $40,000 6 months 
Madame Vanier Children's Services $90,000 3 years 
Meals on Wheels London $53,300 18 months 
Municipality of North Middlesex $14,000 1 year 
North America Railway Hall of Fame $70,000 1 year 
Norwich Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $22,000 1 year 
Oxford County Naval Veterans Association $28,900 6 months 
Oxford Cultural Task Force c/o Oxford Community Foundation $40,700 1 year 
Parole de Grace London $35,000 1 year 
Peacekeeper Park A Living Memorial $20,900 1 year 
Pearce Williams United Church Christian Centre $10,000 1 year 
Pillar Voluntary Sector Network $8,700 1 year 
The Plattsville & District Heritage Society $11,500 1 year 
Plattsville & District Minor Hockey Association $10,000 1 year 
Plattsville Curling Club $36,700 1 year 
Polish Combatants' Association in Canada Inc. Branch No. 2, London $34,000 6 months 
Port Stanley Festival Theatre $24,000 6 months 
Restoring Harold Bishop Park - Optimist Project c/o Optimist Club of Norwich and 
District $25,000 1 year 

Rotary Club of Ingersoll Foundation $45,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion Branch 525 $16,800 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Caradoc Branch #251 $26,400 6 months 
Royal Canadian Legion, Sir Arthur Currie Branch 116 $15,700 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion, Varnavair Branch 153 $39,700 9 months 
Save the Cabins c/o Lower Thames Valley Conservation Foundation $75,000 6 months 
Special Ability Riding Institute $107,100 3 years 
St. Thomas Chapter of SPEBSQSA Inc. $15,800 6 months 
The St. Thomas Gun Club Inc. $28,800 1 year 

St. Thomas Jumbo Jets Swim Team $21,500 1 year 
St. Thomas Legion Track Club c/o Ontario Track and Field Association $19,400 1 year 
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Thames Valley (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
St. Thomas Seniors' Centre $7,600 2 months 
Stevenson Children's Camp Foundation $40,000 1 year 
Strathroy District Arts Council $60,000 3 years 
Strathroy ON Chapter of SPEBSQSA, Inc. $29,100 4 months 
Tavistock and District Rod & Gun Club $21,000 1 year 
Temple Israel of London $44,100 3 years 
Thistle Theatre $15,700 9 months 
Thorndale Agricultural Society $4,000 1 year 
Tillsonburg Figure Skating Club Inc. $13,000 6 months 
Town of Ingersoll $50,000 1 year 
Town of Tillsonburg $50,000 6 months 
Township of Malahide $40,000 6 months 
Township of Norwich $25,000 3 months 
Township of Norwich $26,000 1 year 
Tree West Nissouri $14,000 2 years 
Trinity United Church - London $75,000 1 year 
Union Community Centre $7,400 2 months 
United Way of London & Middlesex $37,500 2 years 
Urban League of London $69,400 1 year 
Victorian Order of Nurses - Oxford Branch $55,000 6 months 
Vienna Lions Club $40,000 2 months 
Visual Education Project $15,000 1 year 
VON Middlesex-Elgin Foundation $20,000 1 year 
Wallacetown Agricultural Society $49,000 6 months 
Wellspring London and Region $100,000 2 years 
Wetland Education - Greater London c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $36,000 3 years 
WIL Counselling and Training for Employment $75,000 18 months 
Youth Opportunities Unlimited $75,000 1 year 

Total $3,907,000   
Total Grants 106   
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Toronto   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Abilities Arts Festival : A Celebration of Disability Arts and Culture $100,300 2 years 
ACTION: Active Communities in Toronto Increasing Opportunities for Newcomers c/o 
Working Women Community Centre $150,000 3 years 

Agincourt Community Services Association $150,400 3 years 
ALDER (Adult Learning Disabilities Employment Resource Centre) $6,500 3 months 
Among Friends: The LGBT Immigrant and Refugee Initiative c/o Access Alliance 
Multicultural Community Health Centre $224,400 3 years 

Argonaut Rowing Club $150,000 3 years 
Arraymusic $60,400 3 years 
Art City in St. James Town $50,000 2 years 
Art Starts Neighbourhood Storefront Cultural Centre $201,400 4 years 
ArtReach: Youth Engagement through Arts Funders Collaborative Project c/o The 
Laidlaw Foundation $225,000 3 years 

Arts and Learning in Toronto's Priority Neighbourhood Schools c/o Inner City Angels $160,500 3 years 
Association of Spanish Speaking Seniors of the GTA $26,600 1 year 
AWIC Community and Social Services $50,000 1 year 
B.A.A.N.N. Theatre Centre $18,000 6 months 
Ballet Jorgen Canada $200,000 3 years 
Bereaved Families of Ontario - Toronto $200,500 3 years 
Big Brothers and Big Sisters of Toronto $129,500 2 years 
Boys and Girls Club of East Scarborough $88,900 6 months 
Buddies in Bad Times Theatre $140,000 3 years 
Cabbagetown Youth Centre $164,900 3 years 
Canadian Electric Wheelchair Hockey Association, Toronto Division c/o Canadian 
Electric Wheelchair Association $115,000 3 years 

Canadian Psychiatric Research Foundation $75,000 3 years 
The Canadian Stage Company $225,000 3 years 
CANORAA Inc. $60,000 3 years 
Caribbean Tales $150,000 2 years 
Caribou Community Collaborative c/o North York Women's Centre $15,000 6 months 
Catholic Cross Cultural Services $71,000 1 year 
Centre for Local Research Into Public Space $50,000 1 year 
Children's Own Museum $21,600 6 months 
Chinese Cultural Centre of Greater Toronto $150,000 2 years 
Churches By The Bluffs Community Services $100,000 3 months 
Citizens' Environment Watch $150,000 2 years 
CJRT - Jazz.FM91 $116,500 2 years 
A Commitment to Training and Employment for Women $48,100 1 year 
Company YOU c/o National Ballet of Canada $75,000 6 months 
Creative Works Studio and Good Shepherd Collaborative Renovation Project c/o 
Good Shepherd Non-Profit Homes Inc. $100,000 6 months 

Crow's Theatre Circus $5,700 3 months 
Curtain Call Players $5,000 3 months 
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Toronto (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Danny Grossman Dance Company $112,000 3 years 
Diaspora Dialogues Charitable Society $135,000 2 years 
Downtown Soccer Toronto $11,000 18 months 
East Scarborough Storefront c/o Boys and Girls Club of East Scarborough $339,000 5 years 
East York and East Toronto Family Resources Organization $149,000 2 years 
Elizabeth Fry Society of Toronto $100,000 1 year 
The Esprit Orchestra $75,000 18 months 
Etobicoke 55 + Sports and Games Committee District 17A c/o Ontario Senior Games 
Association $23,700 3 years 

Etobicoke Youth Soccer Club $64,700 3 years 
Fado Performance Inc. $15,000 1 year 
Fife House Foundation Inc. $71,100 1 year 
FoodShare Toronto $300,000 4 years 
Franco-Fête de la Communauté urbaine de Toronto $159,500 3 years 
Franklin Horner Community Centre of Etobicoke $170,000 3 years 
Friends of Simon Wiesenthal Centre for Holocaust Studies $59,000 1 year 
Frontier College $75,000 1 year 
Get your Move on, Making Physical Activity a Toronto Thing c/o Toronto Community 
Foundation $75,000 1 year 

Gilda's Club Greater Toronto $135,600 2 years 
Girl Guides of Canada-Guides du Canada: Toronto Area $21,000 1 year 
Grassroots Youth Collaborative c/o Somali Youth Association of Toronto (SOYAT) $225,000 3 years 
The Green/Arts Barns Project c/o Latin American Art Projects $100,000 1 year 
The Green/Arts Barns Project c/o The Stop Community Food Centre $100,000 1 year 
The Green/Arts Barns Project c/o Women's Healthy Environments Network $100,000 1 year 
IC Network- JVS Toronto Mentoring Program c/o JVS Toronto $219,000 3 years 
Jane-Finch's Caring Village - Promoting Excellence Program c/o Black Creek 
Community Health Centre $225,000 3 years 

Jessie's Centre for Teenagers $106,000 20 months 
Joint Etobicoke Transportation Services c/o Etobicoke Services for Seniors $182,800 3 years 
Kids Up Front Foundation (Toronto) $20,000 1 year 
Laboratoire d'art $125,000 2 years 
Leaside Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $22,500 1 year 
Leave Out Violence (LOVE) $159,000 3 years 
Li Delun Music Foundation $16,200 6 months 
Liaison of Independent Filmmakers of Toronto $75,000 1 year 
Madbakh Women's Initiative c/o The Arab Community Centre of Toronto $58,300 2 years 
Maison de la francophonie de Toronto : développement et mise en oeuvre a/s Centre 
francophone de Toronto $60,700 11 months 

Metro Toronto Movement for Literacy $90,600 3 years 
Mid-Toronto Community Services Inc. $69,800 6 months 
The Milkweed Collective c/o Arts Etobicoke $270,700 5 years 
More Than Child's Play Family Resource Centre $39,600 3 years 
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Toronto (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Native Women's Resource Centre of Toronto Inc. $225,000 3 years 
Necessary Angel Theatre Company $73,600 9 months 
Neighbourhood Centre (East York) $25,900 2 years 
The Nomads Rugby Football Club of Toronto $68,900 1 year 
North York Community House $290,500 4 years 
North York Women's Resource Centre $150,000 2 years 
Now Hear This c/o Descant Arts and Letters Foundation $68,000 1 year 
Oasis Addiction Recovery Society $78,500 6 months 
O'Connor Irish Heritage House $100,000 1 year 
Opera Atelier $140,000 2 years 
Parkdale United Church Foundation Incorporated $100,000 1 year 

Parkdale/Liberty Economic Development Corporation $131,700 2 years 
PFLAG Toronto: Parents, Families & Friends of Lesbians, Gays, Bisexuals & 
Transexuals $25,900 1 year 

Rasik Arts $52,300 44 months 
REEL CANADA: Canadian Film in the Schools $62,100 2 years 
ReelWorld Foundation $101,300 2 years 
REMIX Project c/o Lakeshore Area Multi-Service Project Inc. $225,000 3 years 
Royal Astronomical Society of Canada, Toronto Centre $52,400 6 months 
Scarborough Blizzard Youth Soccer Club $14,600 6 months 
Scarborough Village Hub c/o West Hill Community Services $112,200 18 months 
Second Mile Club of Toronto $26,000 6 months 
Seeds of Hope Foundation $49,900 6 months 
Shakespearience Performing Arts $17,000 1 year 
Silent Voice Canada Inc. $90,000 3 years 
Silver Creek Music Foundation $60,000 3 years 
Small Theatre Administrative Facility $9,100 1 year 
Soulpepper Theatre Company $200,000 3 years 
South Asian Legal Clinic of Ontario (SALCO) $75,000 1 year 
South Asian Visual Arts Collective (SAVAC) $199,800 3 years 
Southern Currents and Video Collective $145,000 3 years 
St. John The Compassionate Mission $75,000 1 year 
St. Stephen's Community House $94,600 4 years 
Stonegate Community Association $150,000 2 years 
Stranger Theatre Company $20,800 3 months 
Street Health Community Nursing Foundation $148,500 2 years 
Symphonyx Entertainment for the Advancement of Arts $4,400 3 months 
Tapestry New Opera Works: Tapestry Music Theatre $130,000 2 years 
Textile Museum of Canada $90,000 3 years 
Toronto Alliance for the Performing Arts $165,000 3 years 
The Toronto Blues Society $99,600 3 years 
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Toronto (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Toronto Book and Magazine Fair (d.b.a. The Word On The Street) $45,800 1 year 
Toronto Child Abuse Centre $13,400 3 months 
Toronto Community Employment Services $14,800 3 months 
Toronto Drop-In Network (TDIN) c/o St. Stephen's Community House $99,100 2 years 
Toronto Festival of Arts, Culture and Creativity $73,600 2 years 
Toronto Green Community Inc. $85,100 2 years 
Toronto HIV/AIDS Human Resources Group c/o AIDS Committee of Toronto $150,000 2 years 
Toronto Humane Society $100,000 1 year 
The Toronto Korean-Canadian Choir Foundation $14,600 6 months 
The Toronto Lesbian and Gay Community Appeal $100,000 2 years 
Toronto Neighbourhood Centres $200,000 3 years 
Toronto Refugee Community Non-Profit Homes and Services $37,500 3 years 
Toronto Speed Skating Club, Inc. $22,600 30 months 
Toronto Vegetarian Association $156,500 3 years 
Toronto Walk21 2007 c/o Green Communities Canada $60,600 2 years 
Toronto Youth Wind Orchestra $10,900 3 months 
Trailblazers Tandem Cycling Club $10,100 6 months 
Trees Davenport c/o Davenport Perth Neighbourhood Centre $223,700 3 years 
Turtle Gals Performance Ensemble $90,000 3 years 
The Urban Environment Centre Toronto $14,700 6 months 
Waterfront Trail Artists Inc. $40,000 2 years 
White Ribbon Foundation $225,000 3 years 
Women's Art Resource Centre - WARC $100,000 2 years 
Women's Habitat of Etobicoke $100,000 6 months 
Women's Place c/o Malvern Family Resource Centre $186,900 3 years 
World Literacy of Canada $120,000 3 years 
York Maverick Water Polo Club $10,500 2 years 
York West Senior Citizens Centre $138,400 3 years 
The Yorkminstrels $12,000 3 months 
YYZ Artists Outlet $8,000 6 months 

Total $14,797,400   
Total Grants 147   
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Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin   
   
Organization Name Amount Term 
African-Canadian Association of Waterloo Region and Area $65,000 28 months 
Alliance for a Grand Community c/o Waterloo Arts Council $162,500 3 years 
Association Francophone de Kitchener-Waterloo $32,000 1 year 
Business & Education Partnership of Waterloo Region $84,000 2 years 
Cambridge & District Humane Society $4,100 1 year 
Cambridge Highland Games $22,000 2 years 
Cara's Hope Maternity Home Trust $35,000 1 year 
The Collaborative for Non Profit Enhancement c/o United Way Kitchener - Waterloo 
and Area $150,000 2 years 

Corporation of the Township of Woolwich $75,000 1 year 
Dufferin Youth Shelter $47,900 1 year 
Elmira & District Curling Club $28,500 6 months 
Elora-Fergus Ringette Association c/o Ontario Ringette Association $27,600 3 years 
The Food Bank of Waterloo Region $75,000 10 months 
Foodlink Waterloo Region Inc. $162,500 3 years 
Give Yourself Credit c/o Family and Children's Services of Guelph and Wellington 
County $113,500 2 years 

Grand Music Incorporated $13,000 6 months 
Grand River Mustangs Girls Hockey Incorporated $70,100 2 years 
Guelph and District Multicultural Centre Inc. $36,500 6 months 
Guelph Soccer Club Inc. $83,000 3 years 
Guelph Youth Basketball Association $46,700 1 year 
Headwaters Community Trails and Greenways Alliance c/o Town of Mono $62,500 1 year 
Headwaters Healthy Wetlands Project Collaborative c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $124,000 3 years 
The Healing of the Seven Generations $122,500 2 years 
Highland Rugby Club $75,000 1 year 
The Hills of Headwaters Tourism Association $48,700 1 year 
Interfaith Community Counselling Centre $49,000 2 years 
Junior Achievement Of The Waterloo Region Inc. $90,000 3 years 
Kids 'n' Dad Shared Support $70,000 2 years 
KidsAbility Centre for Child Development $119,700 2 years 
Kitchener-Waterloo Fastball Promotions Inc. $15,200 6 months 
Kitchener-Waterloo Multicultural Centre $31,600 1 year 
Kitchener-Waterloo Woodworking and Craft Centre $52,100 1 year 
Kitchener-Waterloo Young Women's Christian Association $75,000 1 year 
Leadership Waterloo Region $57,100 1 year 
Nota Bene Period Orchestra $34,000 3 years 
OpenWorks School of Building $74,800 1 year 
Palmerston Curling Club $31,900 3 months 
Paradise and District Lions Club $40,000 4 months 
Pilot Test Environmental Monitoring c/o Centre for Community Mapping (COMAP) $96,000 2 years 
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Organization Name Amount Term 
Puslinch Lake Conservation Association $50,000 1 year 
Reduce the Juice Project $150,000 2 years 
Relationship, Sexuality and Safety Education Network of Wellington-Dufferin c/o 
Family Counselling and Support Services Guelph Wellington $55,900 18 months 

ROOF (Reaching Our Outdoor Friends) $75,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion - Arthur Branch 226 $75,000 1 year 
Royal Canadian Legion Branch 275 $75,000 2 months 
Royal Canadian Legion Shelburne (Ont. No. 220) Branch $75,000 1 month 
Rural Wellington Transportation Group c/o Centre Wellington Resource Group $83,800 18 months 
Social Planning Council of Cambridge and North Dumfries $21,000 1 year 
Social Purchasing Portal c/o Opportunities Waterloo Region $207,100 3 years 
Southwestern Ontario Suzuki Institute $10,000 1 year 
Stanley Park Community Association $4,500 1 year 
Stonehenge Therapeutic Community $17,800 6 months 
Suicide Resource Group Wellington-Dufferin c/o Canadian Mental Health Association 
Wellington-Dufferin Branch $94,500 3 years 

Sunrise Cricket Club $23,000 1 year 
Sweet Adelines International Grand Harmony Chapter $13,800 6 months 
Victim Services of Waterloo Region $92,300 3 years 
Victim Services Wellington $45,000 18 months 
Waterloo County & Area Quilt Festival $70,000 2 years 
Waterloo Region Community Support Services Merger c/o Kitchener-Waterloo 
Friendship Group for Seniors $66,500 1 year 

Waterloo Region Green Solutions $140,000 2 years 
Waterloo Region Shares c/o The Food Bank of Waterloo Region $68,600 2 years 
Waterloo Tennis Club Inc. $65,000 1 year 
Wired World Inc. $96,100 18 months 
Woolwich Cardinals Gymnastics Club Inc. $45,000 2 years 

The Working Centre $70,900 6 months 
Total $4,393,800   

Total Grants 65   
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PROVINCE-WIDE PROGRAM 
 
Organization Name Amount Term 
Aboriginal Cancer Care Video Project c/o Shkagamik-kwe Health Centre $225,200 2 years 
Alternative Land Use Services - Partenership Advisory Committee (ALUS-PAC) c/o 
Long Point Foundation for Conservation $166,500 2 years 

Aquatic Federation of Canada / Fédération aquatique du Canada $50,000 6 months 
Arts Network for Children and Youth $210,000 3 years 
Augmentative Communication Community Partnerships Canada $118,800 18 months 
Building Capacity for Social Enterprise in Francophone Ontario (BCSEFO) c/o 
Canadian Centre for Community Renewal (CCCR) $223,000 21 months 

Camp Winston/Pine Bay Foundation $17,900 1 year 
Canadian Arts Presenters Association $20,000 1 year 
Canadian Association of Physicians for the Environment $200,000 3 years 
Canadian Bookbinders and Book Artists Guild $50,700 3 years 
Canadian Fitness and Lifestyle Research Institute $203,000 2 years 
The Canadian Hearing Society $131,400 1 year 
Canadian Parents for French (Ontario) c/o Opera York $23,000 1 year 
Canadian Parks and Recreation Association/Association Canadienne des Parcs et 
Loisirs $155,600 14 months 

Canadian Partnership for Children's Health and Environment c/o Ontario Public 
Health Association $264,500 2 years 

Canadian Retinoblastoma Society - La Société canadienne du rétinoblastome $12,800 1 year 
CAO / Debajehmujig Theatre Co. c/o Community Arts Ontario $223,000 26 months 
Clean Air Foundation $121,000 3 years 
Club Amick c/o Southern Ontario Library Service $325,000 5 years 
Community Arts & Heritage Education Project $38,000 2 years 
Community EFFORT c/o Ontario Co-operative Association Inc. $271,500 4 years 
Community Legal Education Ontario (CLEO) $149,100 2 years 
Community Living Ontario $245,000 3 years 
CompuCorps Mentoring Inc./Les Mentors de CompuCorps Inc. $335,000 3 years 
Cross Country Ontario $230,200 3 years 
Dragon Boat Canada / Bateau-Dragon Canada $190,000 3 years 
Easter Seals Canada $241,100 3 years 
Les Éditions l'Interligne inc. $247,000 3 years 
Environmental Earth Angels $53,900 5 months 
Envisioning New Meanings of Disability and Difference c/o YWCA of Peterborough, 
Victoria and Haliburton $232,600 3 years 

ESTEEM Team Association $260,200 3 years 
Fédération des communautés francophones et acadienne du Canada (FCFA) $15,000 6 months 
FICCDAT Steering Committee c/o Ontario March of Dimes $71,000 6 months 
Financial Capability for Youth c/o Social and Enterprise Development Innovations $398,300 3 years 
Forest Stewardship Council Canada $69,800 1 year 
Freestyle Skiing Ontario $224,000 3 years 
Healthy Communities: Creating Capacity for Change c/o Windsor-Essex Brokerage 
for Personal Supports $286,600 3 years 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 68 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

 

Province-Wide (continued)   
Organization Name Amount Term 
Heart and Stroke Foundation of Ontario $234,300 2 years 
Hospice Association of Ontario $184,700 2 years 
Indigenous Culture and Media Innovations $220,400 17 months 
Japanese Canadian Cultural Centre $228,900 2 years 
JeansMarines $110,000 3 years 

Kawartha Heritage Conservancy $223,000 2 years 
The League of Canadian Poets $20,000 1 year 
Living History Multimedia Association $140,000 2 years 
Local Flavour Plus $200,000 2 years 
Master Gardeners of Ontario Inc. $107,300 18 months 
Meal Exchange $87,600 18 months 
MNO/Frontier Literacy Project c/o Metis Nation of Ontario $244,300 2 years 
Municipal Cultural Planning Partnerships c/o Community Cultural Impresarios $230,500 2 years 
Mural Routes Inc. $184,000 3 years 
National Aboriginal Forestry Association  $64,000 6 months 
National Youth In Care Network $153,100 2 years 
Nature Canada $175,000 15 months 
NEOnet - North Eastern Ontario Communications Network $245,400 2 years 
North East Ontario Consumer Survivor Network $170,200 18 months 
Northeastern Ontario Recreation Association $242,200 3 years 
Northern Postpartum Outreach Collaborative c/o Canadian Mental Health 
Association, Association canadienne pour la santé mentale, Sudbury Branch $158,600 2 years 

Ojibway and Cree Cultural Centre $44,000 1 year 
Older Adults Centres' Association of Ontario $202,400 3 years 
Ontario AIDS Network $196,400 3 years 
Ontario Association for Families of Children with Communication Disorders $121,300 18 months 
Ontario Association of Basketball Officials c/o Basketball Ontario $284,000 2 years 
Ontario Association of Credit Counselling Services $57,800 6 months 
Ontario Association of the Deaf $244,100 28 months 
Ontario Ball Hockey Association $228,500 3 years 
Ontario Community Food Security Network c/o Ontario Healthy Communities 
Coalition $285,500 3 years 

Ontario Community Support Association $247,500 1 year 
Ontario Cultural Values and Benefits Project c/o CCI - Ontario Presenting Network $57,500 3 years 
Ontario Economuseum Corporation $120,000 2 years 
Ontario Floorball/Unihockey Federation $31,600 1 year 
Ontario Heritage Connection Society $94,000 3 years 
Ontario Horticultural Association $229,000 3 years 
Ontario Sailing Association $79,000 2 years 
Ontario Soccer Association $400,000 2 years 
Ontario Sustainable Energy Association $260,000 2 years 
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Organization Name Amount Term 
Ontario Wheelchair Sports Association $200,000 3 years 
Ophea and LIN Strategic Partnership c/o Ontario Physical and Health Education 
Association $302,100 3 years 

Orchestre de la francophonie canadienne $10,000 6 months 
Pathways to Education Canada $575,000 3 years 
PhotoSensitive $216,500 18 months 
Pipers' and Pipe Band Society of Ontario $18,600 3 months 
Play/rights Collaborative c/o PEN Canada $304,600 3 years 
Project Porchlight $150,000 1 year 
Provincial Sport Organizations Council $229,500 3 years 
Renewed Strength Inc. $133,800 2 years 
Research and Conceptualization Initiative for Extending the Reach of Supportive 
Care c/o Wellspring Cancer Support Foundation $325,800 3 years 

Réseau ontarien de prévention des agressions a/s Centre ontarien de prévention des 
agressions $125,000 2 years 

Réseau Ontario $165,000 3 years 
Sage - Agora Demonstration Project c/o Sage Centre $165,700 18 months 
Save the Oak Ridges Moraine Coalition $164,000 3 years 
Seeds of Diversity Canada/Programme Semencier du Patrimoine Canada $58,000 18 months 
SIRCH Community Services and Consulting $156,800 28 months 
Social Planning Network of Ontario c/o Community Development Halton $259,500 3 years 
Society for Educational Visits and Exchanges in Canada,SEVEC $226,600 3 years 
Students' Assembly on Electoral Reform c/o The Students Commission/La 
Commission des étudiants $145,000 7 months 

Sustainable Urban Development Association $76,800 1 year 
TEKdesk c/o Community Opportunity & Innovation Network Peterborough Inc. $156,600 18 months 
Théâtre Action $160,000 2 years 
Théâtre de la Vieille 17 $175,000 3 years 
Toronto Dragons 2006 (IDBF Club Crew Dragon Boat World Championship) $90,100 6 months 
Toronto Festival of Arts, Culture and Creativity $176,400 2 years 
Toronto Jewish Film Festival $151,000 3 years 
Toronto Symphony Orchestra Association $364,000 2 years 
Trans Canada Trail Ontario $183,000 18 months 
Transitions Action Coalition c/o Open Doors for Lanark Children and Youth $249,200 3 years 
Trees Ontario Foundation $68,300 7 months 
Turner's Syndrome Society $61,000 2 years 
Voice for Hearing Impaired Children $135,600 2 years 
World Wildlife Fund Canada $163,000 2 years 

Total $19,247,300   
Total Grants 110   
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PARTNERS IN SERVING ONTARIO 
 

Ontario Trillium Foundation 
Board of Directors 

 
As at March 31, 2007 

 
 Date Appointed  Term Expires 

Helen Burstyn, Chair 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Hugh O’Neil, Vice-Chair 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Jean-François Gratton, Treasurer 06.24.04 AGM 2008 
 

 
Bluma Appel 06.26.03 AGM 2009 
Harmail Basi 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Sylvie Bigras 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Shirley Cheechoo 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Vincent Conville 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Jerry Corriveau 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Andrea Delvaillé 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Barry Fowler 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Donna Gilhooly 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Kenneth Goldberg 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
John Hinds 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Brian Hutchings 06.29.06 AGM 2009 
Bruce Lourie 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Jennifer Lynn 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Isabel Metcalfe 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Janet Passmore 06.29.06 AGM 2009 
Gisèle Richer 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Sharyn Salsberg Ezrin 12.09.04 AGM 2007 
Alex Shepherd 10.01.04 AGM 2007 
Nalini Stewart 06.29.06 AGM 2009 
Winston Tinglin 10.01.04  AGM 2007 
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Grant Review Teams  

Volunteers serving the Foundation in 2006-2007 
 
1. Northwestern 

 Term begins Term expires 
Lucille Michaud, Chair 01.13.05 01.12.08 
Bernice Connell 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Brian L. Collins 01.13.05 01.12.08 
Joseph Romeo Duguay 10.11.06 10.10.09 
Margaret Fiddler 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Russ Fortier 05.03.06  05.02.09 
Edward (Ted) Hanley 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Brian Kahler 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Kathleen Leek 01.05.06 01.04.08 
Sandra (Sandy) Lychowyd 05.30.06 05.29.09 
Neil C. Macodrum 05.03.06 05.02.09 
Vera Mannila 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Guy O’Brien 01.13.05 01.12.08 
Jane Peterson 08.10.06 08.09.09 
John L. Remus 09.20.06 09.19.09 

 
2. Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury  

 Term begins Term expires 
Huguette Roy-Perron, Chair 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Lorraine Aelick 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Brenda Alemany 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Paul Bagordo 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Angela Becks 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Perry Boyer 08.08.05 08.07.07 
Nancy Craig 11.17.05 11.16.07 
Earl Dereski 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Bob Giroux 06.28.06 06.27.09 
Lawrence Martin 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Mariette Rains 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Sergio Saccucci 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Rob Scott 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Suzanne Shawbonquit 06.22.06 06.21.09 
Romana Siegel 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Patricia Toffolo 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Steve Van Duin 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Jeanne E. Warwick Conroy 01.13.05 01.12.08 
Sr Rachelle Watier  03.23.05 03.22.08 
Nicole Rouel Weppler 06.23.04 06.22.07 
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(Continued) 
 
3. Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming 
  Term begins Term expires 

Leo Couture, Chair 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Andrew Ager 05.26.06 03.22.09 
Mary Lou Arrowsmith 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Muriel Bush 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Lois Cookman 11.03.04 11.02.07 
Helene Culhane 10.11.06 10.10.09 
Carol Ann DiBartolomeo 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Joan Eaglesham 06.28.06 06.27.09 
Ed Eng 06.25.03 06.24.09 
Wendall Fisher 12.12.01 12.11.07 
Christina Golding 01.05.06 01.04.09 
John Gurr 02.03.06 02.02.09 
Joseph Lynch 11.10.05 11.09.08 
Melissa Mackey 01.05.06 01.04.09 
Lee Merkley 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Lynn Middaugh 11.15.06 11.14.08 
Jamie Monastyrski 01.15.07 01.14.10 
Lise Rioux 03.23.05 03.22.08 
William (Bill) Roberts 02.03.06 02.02.09 
Vincent Shank 02.03.06 02.02.09 

 
4. Champlain 

 Term begins Term expires 
Gérald G. Samson, Chair 08.08.05 08.07.07 
Glenn Arthur 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Michel Beaulne 09.20.05 04.19.08 
Jocelyne Besner 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Pierre Caron 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Susan Carter 06.01.05 05.31.08 
Gérald Charlebois 03.02.05 03.01.08 
Keith A. De Cruz 08.08.05 08.07.08 
Frank Dyson 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Jocelyne Chrétien Emmell 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Rhéal Filion 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Lorraine Finn 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Joanne Haley 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Liz Hart 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Eldon G. Horner 08.01.03 07.31.09 
Levit Ledoux Koloko 10.11.06 10.10.09 
Sandra Lalonde 08.01.06 07.31.09 
Warren Maidens 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Diane McKinnon 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Colleen Sauriol 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Kelley Whitman-McKie 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Bob Wilson 09.17.04 09.16.07 
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Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant Review Teams 
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5. Quinte, Kingston, Rideau   
  Term begins Term expires 

Donna Davidson, Chair 05.02.01 05.01.07 
Stephanie Attwood 06.04.06  06.03.09 
Judi Baril 05.03.06 05.02.09 
Carol Chisholm 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Elizabeth Churcher 01.13.05 01.12.08 
Hermine (Mimi) Clancey 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Chalmer R. Conn 03.19.03 05.02.09 
Valerie Deakin 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Bruce Duncan 03.23.06 03.22.09 
Mary Anne Evans 10.25.06 10.24.09 
Martin Halloran 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Nina Jenkins 02.07.07 02.06.10 
Robert (Bob) Lavoie 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Mary Lettner 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Kathleen (Kay) Manderville 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Bonnie Pelletier Maracle 12.15.05 12.14.08 
Marny McCook 12.01.04 11.30.07 
John McDougall 06.04.03 12.05.09 
David L. Mullins 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Dennis O’Grady 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Patricia Potter 06.22.05 06.21.08 
Maurice Smith 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Ann Wardrop 02.03.06 02.02.08 

 
6. Grand River    
  Term begins Term expires 

Delia O’Byrne, Chair 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Charles Beach 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Paul Brown 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Vincent A. Bucci 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Darlene Edmonds 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Marjorie Featherston 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Sheryl Main 04.20.05 04.19.07 
Jang Panag 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Giuditta E. Poelzl 04.05.06 04.05.07 
John Race 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Karen Richardson 10.11.06 10.11.08 
Peter Slaman 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Carole Smith 04.06.05 04.05.07 
Robert Stanley 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Barbara Tanner-Billings 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Paulette Tremblay  04.20.05 04.19.08 
Colette Wilson  08.24.06 08.23.09 
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Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant Review Teams 
(Continued) 
 
7. Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin   
  Term begins Term expires 

Donald Bourgeois, Chair 07.05.04 07.04.07 
Neil Aitchison 07.05.06 07.04.07 
Cameron Ballantyne 12.15.05 12.14.08 
Rob Black 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Martin Bosch 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Pierre Brianceau 05.16.01 05.15.07 
Catharine Collins 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Spencer Finch 03.05.03 06.06.09 
Jeff G. Hepple 09.06.06 09.05.09 
Peter Hinchcliffe 11.29.06 11.28.09 
Don Jonescu 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Bill Loutitt 02.15.06 02.14.07 
Samantha Veniez 06.28.06 06.27.09 

 
8. Hamilton  
  Term begins Term expires 

Frank Passaro, Chair 02.03.06 02.02.09 
Anne Bain 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Kate Bursey 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Ali Cheaib 08.24.06 08.23.09 
David Cummins 11.10.05 11.09.08 
Sera Felice-Armenio 01.05.06 01.04.08 
Shirley Joan Glauser 02.03.06 02.02.08 
Juanita Gledhill 06.23.04 06.22.07 
James Michael Kirk 02.03.06 02.02.09 
Scott Koblyk 12.15.05 12.14.08 
Ashok Kumar 02.07.07 02.06.10 
Grahame Meredith 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Leo Normandeau 12.07.05 12.06.08 
Arthur B. Samson 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Mary Sellars 11.29.06 11.28.09 
Elizabeth Templeton 11.10.05 11.09.08 
Dominic Verticchio 11.29.06 11.28.09 
Patricia Wright 05.03.06 05.02.09 

 
9. Niagara  

 Term begins Term expires 
Mary Turner, Chair 10.12.04 10.11.07 
Bob Agar 04.20.05 04.19.08 
Grace-Ann Cambray 07.05.04 07.04.07 
Don Davis 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Louise Farquhar 04.06.05 04.05.08 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 75 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant Review Teams 
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Niagara  
 Term begins Term expires 
Mary Turner, Chair 10.12.04 10.11.07 
Harvie Hagerty 11.15.06 11.14.09 
G. Peter Hammond 06.22.05 06.21.08 
Donna Herrington 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Yvonne Hopkins 09.06.06 09.05.09 
Natalie Howard 12.21.06 12.20.09 
Christopher Knapp 01.05.06 01.04.09 
Blake McIntyre 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Murray Mulligan 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Michelle Sault-White 09.20.06 09.19.09 
Fred Steeve 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Adéle Tanguay 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Bernie Villamil 07.05.04 07.04.07 
William J. D. Walters 09.01.05 08.31.08 

 
10. Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth  

 Term begins Term expires 
Kathleen Pletsch, Chair 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Kees van Aalst 10.05.06 10.04.09 
Sandy Bell  06.05.30 05.29.09 
Leigh Butler 08.08.05 08.07.08 
Elizabeth Chalmers 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Frank Coulter 08.08.05 08.07.07 
Kevin Eccles 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Patricia Froud 12.06.06 12.05.09 
Susan Elizabeth Fry 03.23.06 03.22.09 
Allan Harrison 10.05.05 10.04.08 
Joseph Hogan 03.23.06 03.22.09 
Mark Lemon 08.08.05 08.07.07 
Milton McIver 06.22.06 06.21.09 
Margaret Menzies 12.13.06 12.12.09 
David T. Mullen 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Muriel Murphy 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Jim Murray 12.18.04 12.17.07 
Ronald L. Oswald 05.04.05 05.03.08 
Douglas Pratley 12.15.05 12.14.08 
Nora Rocher 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Bertha Jean Scott 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Joe Steffler 04.15.03 05.02.09 
Sharon Weitzel 09.17.04 09.16.07 
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11. Essex, Kent, Lambton 

 Term begins Term expires 
Rosemary Lavoratore, Chair 02.23.05 03.22.07 
Theresa Baldassarre 03.02.05 03.01.08 
Shelly Bondy 11.29.06 11.28.09 
Jordan Dennis 03.07.07 03.06.08 
James C. Evans 12.18.01 12.17.07 
Patricia Anne Marie Fenchak 11.10.05 11.09.08 
Dianne Flook 12.18.01 12.17.07 
Brenda Frezza 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Brian Gray 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Laurie Hicks 01.05.06 01.04.09 
Marilyn Mann 05.02.01 05.01.07 
Angelo Minato 12.13.06 12.12.09 
Edward Myers 09.01.05 08.31.08 
Jeff Topliffe 06.23.04 06.22.07 

 
12. Thames Valley 

 Term begins Term expires 
Paul Willoughby, Chair 12.01.04 11.30.07 
W. L. Keith Bingham 06.30.06 06.29.09 
Ruth Ferguson 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Denis Gadwa 06.22.06 06.21.08 
Brian George 06.30.06 06.29.09 
Janet Golding 10.11.06 09.10.10 
Jim Jamieson 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Allan Kirk 10.18.05 10.17.08 
Ann Lapchinski 08.24.06 08.23.09 
John Lessif 06.01.05 05.31.08 
Dr. Theodore (Ted) Lo 03.23.06 03.22.09 
Dr. Dev R. Sainani 06.22.05 06.21.08 
Lillian Sawchuk 11.29.06 11.28.08 
Job P. G. Tromp 03.02.05 03.01.08 
Joe Van Overberghe 06.30.06 06.29.09 
Nancy Walther 07.05.04 07.04.07 
Dixie Westcar 08.24.06 08.23.08 

 
13. Halton-Peel  

 Term begins Term expires 
Lindsay Williams, Chair 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Gladstone Allison 03.07.07 03.06.08 
James Bird 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Neil Bunn 08.10.06 08.09.08 
Nancy Cummins 06.22.06 06.21.09 
Luz del Rosario 06.30.06 06.29.09 
Steve Dhaliwal 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Angela DiCintio 08.10.06 08.09.08 
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Halton-Peel  
 Term begins Term expires 
Grant Gooding 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Gail Grant 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Carlyle Khan 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Sharon McBride 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Shameem Mohammed 08.24.06 08.23.08 
Bogdan Poprawski 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Terry Quinn 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Grace Soyao 04.11.06 04.10.09 
Sheila Tutty 05.30.06 05.29.09 
Edwin Upenieks 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Andrew Ward 05.30.06 05.29.09 

 
14. Simcoe-York  

 Term begins Term expires 
Richard A. Beatty 02.15.06 02.14.09 
Donna Bere 07.15.05 07.14.08 
Dorothy Cauthers 09.06.06 09.05.09 
Helen Ching-Kircher 12.01.04 11.30.07 
Gary Gladstone 11.15.06 11.14.09 
Fatima Haji 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Patricia Hoover 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Douglas Jagges 02.15.06 02.14.08 
Vijay Lekhi 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Grace Locilento 12.07.05 12.06.08 
Gino Muia 11.03.04 11.02.07 
Duncan Newman 10.07.04 10.06.07 
Richard Oatway 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Mervat Rashwan 11.15.06 11.14.09 
Alicia Savage 07.15.05 07.14.08 

 
15. Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge 

 Term begins Term expires 
Peter Forgrave, Chair 09.26.01 09.25.07 
Jeanne Anthon 06.22.06   06.21.07 
Kenneth Armstrong 09.17.04 09.16.07  
Dorothy A. Fletcher 06.23.04 06.22.07 
Judith Hayes 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Greg Mather 06.25.03 06.24.09 
Brian Markle 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Eileen Nolan 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Naomi Omar-Ali 11.15.06 11.14.08 
Aubrey Oppers 03.05.01 05.02.07 
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Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge 
 Term begins Term expires 
Klara Oyler 02.03.06 02.02.09 
Gladys Petherick 08.08.05 08.07.08 
Katherine Forgaard Pullen 10.05.05 10.04.08 
Pramilla Ramdahani 10.11.06 10.10.09 
Janice Sanderson 02.03.06 02.02.09 
John Stafford 06.22.06 06.21.09 
Morris Tait 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Jonathan Tondeur 06.23.04 05.22.07 
Helen Walsh 08.10.06 08.09.09 
Lloyd George White 09.17.04 09.16.07 

 
16. Toronto  

 Term begins Term expires 
Alexander Waugh, Chair 07.05.05 07.04.07 
Yvette Ali 03.23.06 03.22.09 
Shehnaz Alidina 11.05.05 05.31.08 
Jonathan Chan-Combrink 06.28.06 06.27.09 
Jean Crawford 04.06.05 04.05.08 
Cynthia Dann-Beardsley 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Raymond Fredette 03.02.05 03.01.08 
Hugh Furneaux 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Charles Hain 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Cynthia Head 09.20.06 09.19.09 
Selwyn Henry 12.21.06 12.20.09 
Mehboob Hirani 03.23.05 03.22.08 
Hawaa Kabbashy 09.17.04 09.16.07 
Olga Madeira 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Edith Montgomery 07.05.04 07.04.07 
Kevin Moore 02.15.06 02.14.08 
Mario Nigro 10.05.06 10.04.09 
Sahar Rizvi 08.24.06 08.23.08 
Carol Roberts 12.07.05 12.06.08 
Julia Anne Shea 09.24.03 09.23.09 
Heather Simpson 08.24.06 08.23.09 
Paul-François Sylvestre 03.02.05 03.01.08 
Brenda Wong 11.10.05 11.09.07 
Saira Zuberi 08.24.06 08.23.09 
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Ontario Trillium Foundation Staff 
As at March 31, 2007 

 
Name Title 
Bernadette Ang Assistant Manager, Program Systems 
Lyn Apgar Area Manager 
Mary Banks Coordinator of Program Administration  
Janice Baun Coordinator of Program Administration 
Tracey Beauregard Research Analyst 
Suzanne Bédard Program Manager 
Sonja Bogojevski Coordinator of Program Administration 
Natalie Bortkiewicz Coordinator of Program Administration 
Sandy Braendle Program Manager 
Linda Briggs Program Manager 
Maureen Brophy Program Manager  
Carrie Butcher Program Manager  
Ron Cantin Program Manager  
Pamela Campbell Program Manager  
Robin Cardozo Chief Executive Officer 
Nelson Chan Manager of Finance 
Alvin Chau Network Database Administrator 
Henry Chong Area Manager 
Peter Chu Director of IT 
Clarisse Chung-Moi Coordinator of Administration, Human Resources & Volunteer Relations
Kerrin Churchill Area Manager 
Trudi Collins Program Manager 
Brian Conway Program Manager  
Colleen Coyne Communications Officer, Event Planning 
Gunilla Creutz Coordinator of Program Administration 
Louise Crofts Grants Associate  
Wendy Dempsey Grants Associate 
Blair Dimock Director of Research, Evaluation and Knowledge Management 
Nuala Doherty Program Manager 
John Ecker Director of Communications and Public Affairs 
Patricia Else Director of Grant Operations 
Manfred Fast Program Manager 
Maggie Fischbuch Program Manager 
Faustina Fordjor Office Assistant 
Arti Freeman Program Manager 
Sabrina Gabrielli Office Assistant 
Jean Paul Gagnon Program Manager 
Lorraine Gandolfo Area Manager 
Lina Giovenco Coordinator of Program Administration 

 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 80 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 
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(Continued) 

 
 

Name  Title 
Agnès Gizard GGrants Associate 
Doug Gore Program Manager 
Jane Greer Manager of Marketing and Media Services 
Lenneal Howden File and Mail Clerk 
Julia Howell Program Manager 
Kevin Humphrey Grants Associate 
Loida Ignacio Office Assistant 
Rozina Issani Receptionist 
Mary Jago Manager of Communications and Events 
Karen Kahelin Grants Associate 
Kiyomi Kaiura Financial Assistant 
Cheryl Kanwar Office Assistant 
Lori Kay Communications Officer, Event Planning 
Theron Kramer Program Manager 
Diane Labelle-Davey Director of Human Resources and Volunteer Relations 
Béatrix Lafosse Communications and Translation Services Officer 
Patrick Lee Helpdesk Assistant 
Kalok Leung Coordinator, Financial Administration 
Inga Lubbock Program Manager  
Michelle MacDonald Senior Policy & Research Analyst 
Donna Maitland Program Manager  
Angie Marquez Grants Associate 
Melanie Maxwell Manager of Administration 
Valérie McCullough Webmaster 
Tara McMurtry Program Manager 
Gilmar Militar Program Manager 
Jennifer Miller Area Manager 
Lillian Min Coordinator of Program Administration 
Ruth Mott Program Manager 
Colette Naubert Area Manager  
Clare Nolan Coordinator of Program Administration 
Paul O’Brien Coordinator of Program Administration 
Eulan O'Connor Coordinator, Corporate Administration 
Stacey O'Neill Coordinator of Program Administration  
Renée Ouellet Senior Communications Officer, Marketing & Media 
Diane Papadopoulos Coordinator of Program Administration 
Anne Pashley Vice-President of Finance and Administration 
Lenka Petric Program Manager 
Marius Picos Research Analyst 
Maisie Poon Human Resources Advisor 
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Name  Title 
Jackie Powell Program Manager  
Beth Puddicombe Program Manager  
John Pugsley Program Manager  
Joanne Richmond Program Manager  
Jennifer Risdon Manager, Human Resources 
Tracey Robertson Program Manager 
Michael Russell Business Systems Analyst 
Maja Saletto Jankovic Program Manager  
Dennis Scott Helpdesk Assistant 
Heather Shaw Senior Policy & Research Analyst 
Diane Sigouin-Daniel Communications Officer, Event Planning 
Sheila Simpson Program Manager 
Nicole Smith Communications Officer, Event Planning 
Stella Sosu Receptionist 
James Southworth Research & Administrative Assistant 
Marilyn Struthers Program Manager 
Mary-Jo Sullivan Program Manager 
James Tutty Office Assistant 
Nicole Vautour Webmaster 
Susan West Program Manager 
Jacinth Whittingham Coordinator of Program Administration 
Dan Wilson Manager, Policy, Research & Evaluation  
Alex Wojtow Grants Associate 
Constance Yau Coordinator of Administration, Grant Operations 
Philip Yorke File and Facilities Clerk  
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Financial Report 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 
March 31, 2007 
 

Report on Financial Performance 
 
 
• In 2006-2007, the Ontario Trillium Foundation received $100 million from the Ministry of 
Culture for its Community and Province-Wide Grants Programs.  (Only $99.3 million is recorded 
in the Statement of Operations; the remaining $700,000 is recorded in Deferred Contributions, 
for spending in the following year.)  Other revenue sources include investment income ($6.1 
million) and funds made available as a result of rescinded grants ($1.8 million). 
 
• Of this funding, $95.8 million was pledged for Community and Province-Wide grants, and 
grantmaking expenses and support services together amounted to $11.5 million.   
 
• At March 31, 2007, the Foundation held approximately $98.4 million in investments in short-
term treasury bills. Most of these funds ($96.4 million) are committed to multiyear grant pledges 
and are invested to maximize interest income for the Foundation. Investments are made under 
the policy direction of the Ontario Financing Authority. 
 
• Funds may be recovered, or future payments rescinded, in cases where circumstances (e.g. 
planned activities, budgets) change or where grant conditions or performance objectives are not 
met. 
 
• Accumulated net assets at year-end totaled $2.6 million, of which approximately $500,000 
was invested in capital assets and $2.1 million represented unrestricted assets.   
 
• Volunteers make a significant contribution to the operations of the Foundation. Given the 
difficulty of estimating monetary value, these contributions are not reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 
• In April 2007 the Foundation received funds from the Ministry of Culture in the amount of 
$105 million, representing an increased level of funding over the previous year. 
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 KPMG LLP  Telephone (416) 228-7000 
 Chartered Accountants Fax (416) 228-7123 
 Yonge Corporate Centre Internet www.kpmg.ca 
 4100 Yonge Street Suite 200 
 Toronto ON  M2P 2H3 
 Canada 
 
 
 

 

AUDITORS' REPORT  

To the Board of Directors of Ontario Trillium Foundation 

 

We have audited the statement of financial position of Ontario Trillium Foundation as at March 31, 2007 
and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended.  These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Foundation as at March 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  As required by the 
Corporations Act (Ontario), we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied on a basis 
consistent with that of the preceding year. 

 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

 

Toronto, Canada 

April 27, 2007 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
March 31, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 
  2007 2006 
 

Assets 
 
Cash $ 921,310 $ 999,297 
Accrued interest and other 3,383,625 2,040,955 
Investments (note 2) 98,435,000 99,306,439 
Capital assets, net (note 3) 500,241 587,879 
 
  $ 103,240,176 $ 102,934,570 
 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 635,018 $ 641,953 
Deferred contributions (note 4(a)) 3,675,804 2,951,558 
Grants payable (note 4(b)) 96,357,312 96,769,017 
  100,668,134 100,362,528 

 
Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets 500,241 587,879 
Unrestricted 2,071,801 1,984,163 
  2,572,042 2,572,042 

 
  $ 103,240,176 $ 102,934,570 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Operations  
 
Year ended March 31, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 
  2007 2006 
 
Revenue: 

Ontario government funding (note 4(a)) $ 99,275,754 $ 100,816,575 
Grants rescinded or recovered 1,836,931 1,502,849 
Investment income 6,119,643 4,156,944 
  107,232,328 106,476,368 

 
Expenses: 

Program activities: 
Grants pledged (note 4) 95,762,400 94,968,100 
Grantmaking expenses 9,740,918 9,816,158 
Non-grant community services (note 5) 235,437 228,364 
  105,738,755 105,012,622 

Support services 1,072,339 1,097,198 
Amortization 421,234 366,548 
  107,232,328 106,476,368 

 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ – $ – 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



 
Ontario Trillium Foundation 86 Annual Report 2006 – 2007 

ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 
    2007 2006 
  Invested in    
  capital assets Unrestricted Total Total 
 
Net assets, beginning of year $ 587,879 $ 1,984,163 $ 2,572,042 $ 2,572,042 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue 

over expenses (423,367) 423,367 – – 
 
Purchase of capital assets 335,729  (335,729) – – 
 
Net assets, end of year $ 500,241 $ 2,071,801 $ 2,572,042 $ 2,572,042 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 
  2007 2006 
 
Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operating activities:  

Amortization of capital assets which does not involve cash $ 421,234 $ 366,548 
Loss on disposal of capital assets  2,133 – 
Change in non-cash operating items (1,037,064) (5,284,273) 
  (613,697) (4,917,725) 

 
Investing activities: 

Net decrease in investments 871,439 5,405,182 
Purchase of capital assets (335,729) (281,335) 
  535,710 5,123,847 

 
Increase (decrease) in cash (77,987) 206,122 
 
Cash, beginning of year 999,297  793,175 
 
Cash, end of year $ 921,310 $ 999,297 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007 
 
 

The Ontario Trillium Foundation (the "Foundation" or "OTF"), an agency of the Ministry of Culture 
(the "Ministry"), is financially supported by the Ontario government.  OTF began operations as an arm's-
length agency of the Ontario government on August 23, 1982 and was incorporated without share capital 
under the laws of Ontario under letters patent dated November 17, 1982.  OTF's purpose is to build 
healthy and vibrant communities throughout Ontario, by strengthening the capacity of the voluntary 
sector, through investments in community-based initiatives. 

The government funding is subject to Memoranda of Understanding with the Ministry that define how the 
funds must be invested and distributed. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles applied within the framework of the significant accounting policies 
summarized below: 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

OTF follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include government 
funding.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if 
the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.  
Externally restricted contributions are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in which 
the related expenses are incurred. 

(b) Investments: 

Short-term investments, treasury bills and bankers' acceptances are recorded at cost.  Bonds 
are recorded at amortized cost. 

(c) Grants: 

Grants are recorded as expenses in the year that the Foundation approves the grant. 

(d) Expenses: 

Departmental expenses are allocated between grantmaking and support services based on the 
percentage of each department's activities devoted to these activities. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007 
 
 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided on 
a straight-line basis over the following periods: 

 
 
Furniture and fixtures  5 years 
Computer hardware  3 years 
Computer software  1 year 
Leasehold improvements  Over term of lease 
 
 

(f) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. Investments: 

Investments, at cost, are as follows: 

 
  2007 2006 
 
Treasury bills $ 98,435,000 $ 99,076,396 
Bankers' acceptances – 230,043 
 
  $ 98,435,000 $ 99,306,439 
 

The market value of investments approximates cost. 

The treasury bills and bankers' acceptances are due within the next four months and bear interest 
from 4.12% to 4.50% (2006 - 2.96% to 4.05%). 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007 
 
 

3. Capital assets: 
 

 2007 2006 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Furniture and fixtures $ 740,007 $ 621,496 $ 118,511 $ 72,647 
Computer hardware 1,035,343 797,166 238,177 277,626 
Computer software 382,585 322,318 60,267 22,968 
Leasehold improvements 1,216,378 1,133,092 83,286 214,638 
 
 $ 3,374,313 $ 2,874,072 $ 500,241 $ 587,879 
 

4. Deferred contributions and grants payable: 

(a) Deferred contributions represent funding received from the Ministry that has not yet been 
pledged as grants.  The continuity of deferred contributions is as follows: 

 
    2007 2006 
 
Deferred contributions, beginning of year $ 2,951,558 $ 3,768,133 
 
Activities during the year: 

Funding received  100,000,000 100,000,000 
 
Investment income recorded as revenue 6,119,643 4,156,944  
Grants pledged (95,762,400) (94,968,100) 
Grantmaking expenses (9,740,918) (9,816,158) 
Support services and amortization  (1,493,573) (1,463,746) 
Non-grant community services (235,437) (228,364) 
Grants rescinded or recovered related  

to grants approved after March 31, 1999 1,836,931  1,502,849  
Amounts recognized as Ontario  

government funding (99,275,754) (100,816,575) 
 
Deferred contributions, end of year $ 3,675,804 $ 2,951,558 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007 
 
 

4. Deferred contributions and grants payable (continued): 

(b) Once OTF pledges grants for distribution, the grants are recorded as grants payable.  Grants 
pledged and not yet distributed are payable, subject to the receipt of funds by OTF and to 
certain performance conditions placed on the recipients.  The continuity of grants payable is as 
follows: 

 
  2007 2006 
 
Grants pledged - Community and  

Province-Wide grants programs $ 95,762,400 $ 94,968,100 
Grants rescinded (1,347,200) (1,066,500) 
Grants paid (94,826,905) (97,416,250) 
  (411,705) (3,514,650) 
 
Grants payable, beginning of year 96,769,017  100,283,667 
 
Grants payable, end of year $ 96,357,312 $ 96,769,017 
 

Grants are payable to various organizations in the fiscal years ending March 31 as follows: 

 
 
2008   $ 66,007,812 
2009  23,980,300 
2010  5,543,500 
2011  697,600 
2012  128,100 
 
    $ 96,357,312 
 

5. Non-grant community services: 

Non-grant community services are charitable activities other than grants, such as partnerships with 
other organizations, projects initiated by OTF and technical assistance to community organizations.  
These contributions include expenses allocated from current operations. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2007 
 
 

6. Commitments: 

Future minimum annual rental payments for premises under operating leases are as follows: 

 
 
2008   $ 364,000 
2009  77,000 
2010  34,000 
2011  2,000 
 
    $ 477,000 
 

In relation to these leases, OTF has agreed to indemnify the Landlord against losses occurring on 
the lease premises which may arise out of a breach of the lease agreement. 

OTF's lease for its Toronto head office premises expires in February 2008.  A commitment for 
future lease space will be negotiated prior to that time. 

7. Indemnification of officers and directors: 

OTF has indemnified its past, present and future directors, officers, employees and volunteers 
against expenses (including legal expenses), judgements, and any amount actually or reasonably 
incurred by them in connection with any action, suit or proceeding in which the directors are sued 
as a result of their service, if they acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests 
of OTF.  The nature of the indemnity prevents OTF from reasonably estimating the maximum 
exposure.  OTF has purchased directors' and officers' liability insurance with respect to this 
indemnification. 

8. Financial assets and liabilities: 

The carrying values of cash, accrued interest and other, accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
and grants payable approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of 
these items or because they are receivable or payable on demand. 

The market value of investments is disclosed in note 2. 
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